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On behalf of the board,

I would like to present the annual report of

Hans Energy Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year 2010.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

In Year 2010, we globally experienced the recovery from the financial
tsunami two years age. The initiatives from economies around the world
to counter measure the contraction of economies in 2009 stimulated
the rebound. Despite that the worst was over, the loosening monetary
polices from the USA however laid the uncertainties and volatilities for
the global markets to face.

The relatively loose monetary policies in place during 2009 in China
coupled with the second wave of Quantitative Easing Program in the
USA in 2010 have led to plenty of liquidity flows to emerging markets.
Commodity prices and asset valuation were overheated in many
sectors of around the world. The situation was particular in the PRC
economy. We felt the inflation was approaching to our operating costs
and construction materials. Nevertheless, we believe the government
will contain the inflation within its control through various monetary
measures in 2011.

With regards to our achievements during the year, our core business
maintains its almost full lease-out rate of its tanks in the Xiao Hu Island
Terminal. The port in Dongguan has been granted with the provisional
operation permit. The tank farm in this terminal is expected to start
operations soon once the Environmental Preservation Bureau satisfies
with the construction works. Thanks to our customer’s loyalty and trust
established over the years, the leasing order book for the Dongguan
terminal tanks with a storage capacity of some 300,000 cubic metres
has been filled. Furthermore, the chemical warehouse in Xiao Hu Island,
Panyu, has commenced operations earlier this year. Year 2011 should be
a year for the Group to open a new page in its history.

The global economies will face various challenges in the flood of hot
money around the world, but the Group will keep on focusing our core
business. With the commencement of operations in the Dongguan
new terminal, we have been seriously considering to expand our
business in both horizontal and vertical directions. Horizontally, we
have been seeking the possibility to increase our storage capacity to
the positive market response. Vertically, we are studying the feasibility
of launching refining production lines to leverage on the foundations
and infrastructures we have built in the terminal. Of course, these plans
are still in the drawing boards. However, The Group wishes that all of
the above projects can lay a solid foundation for the Group’s long-term
development and enable the Group to embrace a promising future. We
shall update all our shareholders of any developments in this respect as
appropriate.

On behalf of the board, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude
for the continuing support of the shareholders and business partners
to the Group over the years, as well as the efforts and hard work of all
directors, the management and staff of the Group.

David An
Chairman
Hong Kong, 23 March 2011

TRBES

RoZ—ZF  2REEAMFINSRERS
EREK A_TTNFHE2HAZLERRE
I ERBERE LR RECERE - BF
EEBEDE  XENRREBBERDERIRT
SEERT AR SR EE -

PR -ZRAFNEERREEBERAR T —
ZEXENE BTSRRI EABEREBRDE
ERAF TS - 2IRZETRYDRERER
REEEEBE - SHBELENSLERAR - &
SETHEE - BRI ERA B EM B IR
FBRAOTE - AN - AEERE  ETF
—— FEBFEBRZEERREEGERK -

RAKBREANMBSHARTN S @ AEE/Z
SEB/INEACENAERET 100% B HEE - ]
EAOBESRRLEH - —BREETRAR
RIFRBEBRI - 25T 171 T8 A SRR
RIEE  c R ASEZFRESEFIHFRE
T - BT1F £ 49300,000 37 J5 K #) R 5= 15 SE BT 17 e
MEEERETETE - 1IN FHENPRENLEIAE
EERSFEIHARES - —T——FREASE
EFMELTEEZEN—F o

EEHARZENBERLT - 2REEREERS R
PR EARKRBRHEMERLET - BERE
MISERGLE  ARE-EAREEERARKR
BRAREY - BRAME - AEE—BEEEYE
e EeAKENFETES - LERMZHE
BRE - M E - AEEIER T IRREE
RIGWATTIE - AFERAREENIERLE E R ERHE
REERNERRNE - B4 - ZFENERE
SRR - A ARBEFB LA LR R AT AR
SEMERPBRRETRELY  WSAKBERKR
KM E - NRE SR E Rt A A X
REFIZERERELBR -

AAERRKRERTTAREREREBBHZFREA
SE-EBEXF  URAAEEZEES  BEE
RETHMNEHFEHREN - RAROHE -

HE
EY:4
'S ZE——F=A=+=H



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWKR D

Operation review E 3 e
The operational results of oil and petrochemical terminal located in Xiao
Hu Island of Nansha, Panyu, Guangdong Province in the PRC (“XHIT")
were as follows:

URPREEREEBED N REZAARALE
B(MRACE]D ZEEEEMT

Operational statistics 2010 2009 Change%
EERTET —E-BF “ZENEF 1 %
Number of vessels visited MERFRE

— foreign — 4Nl 221 251 -12.0%

— domestic — i 709 614 +15.5%
Number of trucks served to pick up cargoes EWEY) 2 EHEHE 17,859 17,982 -0.7%
Number of drums filled EREE 39,711 34,883 +13.8%
Transshipment volume (metric ton) a2 e (ANE)

- oils —Hm 7,912 3,584 +120.8%

— petrochemicals —Altm 152,315 165,341 -7.9%
Port jetty throughput (metric ton) SRR = (A8E) 1,352,000 1,555,900 -13.1%
Tank farm throughput (metric ton) frrERELE (A1) 1,695,000 1,880,000 -9.8%

XHIT continues to contribute the major source of revenue to the
Group. During the year, the port throughput continued to drop. It was
attributable to the drop in goods flow across the south China region
that resulted in the decrease of the volume of imported fuel oil in
XHIT by 100% as compared to last year. In addition, the number of
foreign tankers berthed in 2010 was still hampered by the hanging-
high international oil price as compared to domestic retail price.
Fortunately, the number of domestic vessels visited and drums filled and
transshipment volume of oils had been improved in 2010. Besides, XHIT
storage tanks maintained close to 100% lease-out rate throughout the
year.

Segment results

The Group'’s reportable operating segments represent XHIT and
Dongzhou International Terminal (“DZIT"). Both segments lease oil and
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The breakdown of turnover of XHIT is as follows:

BEERWR DT

NRACE 2 EEEAAWT

2010 2009
—Z2-FF —TThF
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
FERT % FHET %
Terminal, storage and 558 - BT 17
transshipment services K w86 AR 75 152,811 95.7 149,969 94.4
Port income ARl N 6,804 4.3 8,975 5.6

During the year, the turnover from the provision of terminal, storage
and transshipment facilities increased by 1.9% from HK$150.0 million to
HK$152.8 million. It was mainly attributable to the increase in pipeline
transmission fee and other terminal operating fee income collected
during the year. On the other hand, the turnover from port income
recorded a decrease of 24.2% from HK$9.0 million to HK$6.8 million,
the slide was in line with the decrease in port throughput during the year.

The Group recorded a decrease of segment profit by 4.2% from HK$98.6
million to HK$94.4 million in 2010. The decrease was attributable to the
decrease of port income. For details of the segment reporting, please refer
to note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

Outlook

The PRC economy came out from the aftermath of financial tsunami
after the various government efforts in investment stimuli and lucrative
liquidity policy. The measures to stimulate domestic consumption in
the PRC drove the demand of oil. Tackling inflation will be one of the
most important tasks for the China government in 2011. Despite the
USA economy did not rebound strongly as expected notwithstanding
its second wave of Quantitative Easing Program, it was generally
recognised that modest recovery would be on its way. In Europe,
economies however did not give any positive sign. The recent uproars
in North Africa and the Middle East casted enormous concerns and
uncertainties to the world economy in 2011.

e  XHIT Liquid Terminal Business

With the term leases in medium to long terms, we expect the
lease-out rate of XHIT storage tanks to maintain at high level of
90%. With the issuance of permit to operate the XHIT 20,000
dwt port jetty in July 2010, the throughput capacity and receiving
abilities will be increased. We are conservatively optimistic in XHIT
operations for the year 2011.
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XHIT Solid Warehousing Centre

In Xiao Hu Island, Panyu, the construction of the warehousing and
logistic centre for solid chemicals has been completed and the
facilities have started operations upon obtained the provisional
operating permit in early January 2011. The centre with a floor
area of 35,000 square metres is mean to capture the business
opportunity of new safety requirements in dangerous goods
caretaking industry in Pearl River Delta. It is expected that the
centre will have 80% utilization in the first year of operation.

DZIT project

The construction of Dongguan port jetty, the operating equipment
installation and storage tanks erection have been substantially
completed. In January 2011, the port has been granted with
the provisional operating licence for cargoes handled through
temporarily. Fees will be earned for transshipment of goods. The
tank farm has gone through various relevant government bureaus
check and examinations and it is expected to complete all the
examination process in first quarter of 2011 and the provisional
operating licence will be granted accordingly. The leasing order
book for the storage tanks has been mostly filled. Some oil tank
customers are now in waiting list and the management is seriously
considering to start building more tanks to cater the demand.

Taishan Crude Oil Terminal project (“TSOT")

Despite the PRC government has indicated its policy of
encouraging the involvement of private sector to participate
in national oil reserves in the country, detailed guidelines for
execution have yet been issued. The preparation works for the
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BEENWKR D
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial review

During the year, the Group’s turnover amounted to HK$159.6 million
(2009: HK$158.9 million), representing a slight increase of 0.4%. It was
driven by the increase in pipeline transmission fee and other terminal
operating fee income collected during the year. However, the drop in
gross margin from 68.3% to 65.5% was attributable to the increase of
operating costs in XHIT, particularly the increase of fuel oil and steam
consumption for the terminal, and the recognition of depreciation and
amortisation for XHIT No.2 port jetty started from July 2010. In 2010,
profit attributable to equity shareholders declined to HK$37.0 million
(2009: HK$41.7 million), representing a decrease of 11.3%. EBIT and
EBITDA for the year were HK$64.2 million (2009: HK$67.0 million) and
HK$93.6 million (2009: HK$95.2 million) respectively. The basic and
diluted earnings per share for the year were 0.99 Hong Kong cents
(2009: 1.12 Hong Kong cents). The drop was mainly attributable to the

BEERWR DT

B %5 18

FA - AEBEXEBR156EET(ZEZTAN
F 158918 T) - WMIER0.4% ° BLTyHRN
FAEERAERHMIERRER K AL IR

B o Rif - EFEH68.3% THKE65.5% * J15
ER/NEACEREERAIE N - LER AR

BEEE MDA RFETAE LT - UERRZ
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£3,7008FTT(ZTTNEF 417088 5T) - &
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increase of operating costs in XHIT and the increase of income tax rate /8 (FB) ZEHHEEEHEAEH RBURERK
of GD (Panyu) from 20% to 22% as a result of the implementation of ~ 20% &2 /1ZE22% °
the Transitional Tax Rate Policy.
2010 2009 Change %
—E-EF —EENEF 24t %
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Turnover EE 159,615 158,944 +0.4
Gross profit EF 104,563 108,601 -3.7
Earnings before interest and tax (“EBIT") B B R A& A (TEBIT) 64,224 67,038 -4.2
Profit attributable to equity shareholders PN ey
of the Company 37,020 41,746 -11.3
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation ~ BF| 8 « #i1E » TE
and amortisation ("EBITDA") K iHRT = A ([EBITDAL) 93,635 95,213 -1.7
Gross margin FEH= 65.5% 68.3%
Net profit margin PP 23.2% 26.3%
Basis earnings per share (HK cents) FRRERRF (BL) 0.99 1.12 -11.6
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) FEERF (L) 0.99 1.12 -11.6
Capital structure, liquidity and gearing BERER NBEERELREER
As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s total cash and cash equivalents WR=-_Z—ZF+_F=+—H A£EEBEZEEK
amounted to approximately HK$76.4 million (31 December 2009: IR&%(EIERE 4%4)/50.764 L,En:(_-\, THE
HK$342.4 million). Most of the funds were held in Hong Kong dollar, +=HA=+—H : 3.424{%7%) - DES N
Renminbi yuan (“RMB") and US dollar. The cash position dropped due  #7x « ARERETIHFE ° fﬁé7k$ﬁFﬁT5§

to the payments made for construction of solid chemical warehousing
and logistic centre in Xiao Hu Island as well as construction and facility
installation for DZIT carried out in 2010.

As at 31 December 2010, the current ratio was 1.28 (31 December
2009: 0.65). The improvement was related to the draw down of the
long-term banking facilities made available to the Group during the
year. Such arrangement turned the net current liabilities position as at
31 December 2009 to the net current assets position as at balance sheet
date.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SRS il

The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 December 2010 was 1.89 (31
December 2009: 1.79) (defined as total liabilities to total equity). The
increase was attributable to the draw down of the banking facilities
made available to the Group to finance the DZIT capital expenditure
during the year.

Financial resources

The current cash reserves and recurrent operating cash flow is sufficient
for the daily requirements for current operations. The Group has
successfully arranged external bank loan financing for development of
new businesses and construction of the solid chemical warehousing
and logistic centre in Xiao Hu Island and DZIT expansion. Due attention
will be paid to the capital and debt markets as well as the latest
developments of the Group in order to ensure the efficient use of
financial resources.

Finance costs

The Group had outstanding bank borrowings of approximately
HK$1,127 million as at 31 December 2010 (2009: HK$897 million).
During the year, the borrowing costs capitalized as construction in
progress was HK$54.4 million (2009: HK$24.4 million) and the finance
cost charged to profit and loss was approximately HK$679,000 (2009:
HK$Nil).

Taxation

The Group had no assessable profit subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
for the year. On the other hand, GD (Panyu), the PRC subsidiary of
the Group, is subject to the transitional tax rate of 22% for the year
ended 31 December 2010 under the new Corporate Income Tax Law
of the PRC. Details are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Charge on group assets

Certain of the Group’s future non-cancellable operating lease
receivables have been collateralized for long-term banking facilities.
Apart from this, as at 31 December 2010, none of the assets of the
Group was pledged.

Capital commitment

At 31 December 2010, the Group had capital expenditure contracted
for but not provided in the financial statements in respect of terminal
development and acquisition of port and storage facilities amounted
to HK$34 million (2009: HK$ 184 million). In the meanwhile, the Group
had capital expenditure not contracted for but approved by the board
and not provided in the financial statements in respect of terminal
development and acquisition of port and storage facilities amounted to
approximately HK$161 million (2009: HK$301 million) as at the balance
sheet date.

Contingent liabilities

At 31 December 2010, the Company has issued financial guarantees
to banks in respect of banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries. The
directors do not consider it probable that a claim will be made against
the Company under the guarantees. The maximum liability of the
Company under the guarantee is HK$10.2 million (2009: HK$Nil) as at
the balance sheet date. Details are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Employees and remuneration policy

At 31 December 2010, the Group had a workforce of approximately 400
people (2009: 290). Salaries of employees are maintained at competitive
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEAERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. David An, aged 51, joined the Company as Chairman in July 2002.
He has many years of experience in China business particularly in the
provision trading of petroleum products and petrochemicals, properties
investments and developments in China.

Mr. Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas, aged 51, joined the Company as Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary in 2005 and was appointed
as Executive Director of the Company in April 2006. Mr. Fung is an
associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has over 25 years of experience in financial
management for multinational corporations and listed companies and
has worked in major international accounting firms.

Ms. Liu Zhijun, aged 43, was appointed as Executive Director of the
Company in April 2006. Ms. Liu is also the Deputy Chairlady and Chief
Financial Controller of Guangdong Petro-Chemicals Company Limited
("“GDPC"”), GD (Panyu) and E/IEIEE. She joined GDPC in 1997. Prior
to that, she had worked in various government departments and large
State-owned enterprises, including the Audit Office of Guangdong
Province, China Travel Service (Holdings) Hong Kong Limited, etc. She
has more than 20 years of experience in financial management. Ms. Liu
graduated from Zhongshan University in 1989 with a Bachelor’s degree
in Economics. Ms. Liu also holds the auditor qualification certificate
of speciality and technology issued by the Ministry of Personnel and
National Audit Office of the People’s Republic of China.

Mr. Zhang Lei, aged 45, was appointed as Executive Director of the
Company in August 2007. He joined the Company as Chief Operating
Officer, PRC in 2006. Mr. Zhang graduated from Dongbei University
of Finance and Economics and obtained the qualification of engineer.
Mr. Zhang has many years of experience in petrochemical industry. He
has expertise in petrochemical specialized technology and is familiar
with financial accounting policy and system of the PRC. Mr. Zhang also
has in-depth knowledge in large petrochemical project management.
He had served China Petrochemical Corporation and held various key
positions such as the chief financial officer of the Singapore branch,
deputy general manager and chief financial officer of the Hong Kong
branch.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Wai Keung, aged 54, joined the Company as Independent
Non-Executive Director in July 2002. He is also the Chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Li graduated
from Hong Kong Polytechnic and holds a Master’s degree in Business
Administration from The University of East Asia. He is also a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Li has held
a number of positions with companies including Sino Land Company
Limited and Henderson Land Development Company Limited. Mr. Li is
now a executive director and financial controller of GDH Limited and the
financial controller of Guangdong Holdings Limited. Mr. Li was a director
and the chief financial officer of Guangdong Investment Limited until
April 2008 and is now a non-executive director only of this company.
Besides, he is an independent non-executive director of Shenzhen
Investment Limited, China South City Holdings Limited and Hong Long
Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on The Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Liu Jian, aged 57, joined the Company as Independent Non-
Executive Director in July 2002. He is also the Chairman of Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee and the Audit
Committee of the Company. Mr. Liu has over 10 years of investment
banking experience and over 20 years of experience in China business
management. He graduated from Jiaotong University, Shanghai. Mr. Liu
previously worked for China state-owned enterprises including China
Resources Holdings Company Limited and Ministry of Foreign Trade and
Economic Cooperation, the PRC. He also held various key positions in
numerous multinational corporations and listed companies.

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony, aged 39, joined the Company as
Independent Non-Executive Director in May 2005. He is also the
Chairman of Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr.
Chan is a Certified Public Accountant and works as a director in a
certified public accounting practice. He has extensive experience in
general assurance and business advisory services in both Hong Kong
and the PRC. Moreover, Mr. Chan has extensive experience in public
listings in Hong Kong and Singapore, mergers and acquisition as well as
corporate finance. He holds a Master degree in Business Administration
from the Manchester Business School. Mr. Chan is now the independent
non-executive director of Honbridge Holdings Limited, Wai Chun Mining
Industry Group Company Limited and Oriental City Group Holdings
Limited, the shares of which are listed on The Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. He is also the independent director of China Nutrifruit Group
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the American Stock Exchange.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEAERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Yi You, aged 61, is a director and a deputy general manager
of GD (Panyu). Before he joined GD (Panyu) in 1992, Mr. Chen was
a deputy factory manager for a large petrochemical company in
Guangzhou, the PRC. Mr. Chen has many years of experience in the
management of storage operations for oil and petrochemical products.

Mr. Li Xiao Hui, aged 43, is a director and a general manger of Bl
B, He joined GD (Panyu) in 1994. Mr. Li has extensive knowledge
and experience in technology and operating management of oil and
petrochemicals storage. He also holds a Master degree of corporate
management. He is now fully responsible for the management of the
infrastructure and construction project in Dongguan.

Mr. Deng Zhi Gang, aged 37, is a director and a deputy general manager
of GD (Panyu). Mr. Deng obtained his Master’s degree in Business
Administration from University of San Francisco. He joined GD (Panyu) in
1996 and has many years of experience in trading and marketing in the
business of storage for oil and petrochemical products.

Mr. Yi Xiao Hui, aged 44, is a director and a deputy general manager
of GD (Panyu). Mr. Yi graduated from /&AMt TEEIERER
(currently named as School of Chemical Engineering of East China
University of Science and Technology) and majored in electrical and
mechanical engineering. He joined GD (Panyu) in 1995, and has 20
years of experience in the storage and operation of petrochemical. He
especially has extensive experience in the whole process of construction
and operation of large-scale petrochemical terminals and dangerous
chemicals docks.

Mr. Han Ming, aged 39, is a deputy general manager of GD (Panyu). Mr.
Han graduated from Heilongjiang Institute of Commerce and majored in
oil storage and transportation operation. He joined GD (Panyu) in 1994.
Mr. Han has many years of experience in business operation and import
and export customs of cargoes.

Mr. Cui Ming, aged 54, is a deputy general manager of GD (Panyu).
Before Mr. Cui joined GD (Panyu) in 1993, he was the deputy general
manager of sales department of F/A{LZ A &]. He has engaged in the
sales of petroleum products for a long time and has extensive experience
in the sales and marketing management of petroleum products.

Mr. Nie Yu Hua, aged 43, is a deputy financial controller of GD (Panyu)
and a director and a deputy financial controller of FNEIE. He joined
GD (Panyu) in 2006. He is an International Certified Internal Auditor, a
member of the Chinese Institute of Certificate Public Accountants and
has professional accountant qualification in PRC. He has over 15 years
financial management experiences in large state owned enterprises, and
has worked as a senior project manager in a famous accounting firm.

Mr. Huang Ji Lin, aged 64, is a consultant of GD (Panyu). Mr. Huang
graduated from ERA#MEZR in the PRC in 1960’s and obtained a
Certificate of Graduation in the Senior Advanced Course in Business
Management from Shenzhen University in 1994. Mr. Huang joined GD
(Panyu) in 1992 and is experienced in project management. Mr. Huang
is also a mechanical engineer in the PRC.

SREEAE

REREE 615 BB (EB)EETRIALEL
2o REAR-NNA-_FNEEE (BB)HIED
BEMN—RAR AR BERIFEK - BREERA
HEACERDFEBEENHEBZFER -

FREESELE 435 RNBEBREERALE -
BR—NANEENBEE (BRE) - FEEELH
RA{CRT AR EE I 0 m A & &8 &L &
B FEEMBACEERERLIEM - REAZ
HREEAREHERLTIEBEER -

WEREE 375 BE(EB)EFTRIALL
o MEARAXEESIURB THEREL
B - FR—NAARENBEEE (FR) XA
HEACERDERERBZEZREHTEERS

SBEERE 4457 BB (BER)EFHRIEK
B ZERERERLBABLEISSERER
REZX(RBERBIAS(ISEMR) KR
—NhAFNEEE(ER)  HEAMETHE
BIE209F  LEERE A TEMELmIEE
ERBERMBEEE T MRS = &R

BHELE 395 BE(HR)IEAKRE -8
FEEENRETIRSR O HFEEESE  BRX
—hNAEEMBEEE (FR) - W BELER
BEEREMELN I BEER T HEAZFEE

BISKL 5458 BB (HEB)ARLE - BR
—hNA=FNEEE(FR)  AATALEER
A ERIALIE  RBNELHERHE TIE
HOMERTIHATSEEEZEENER -

FAPEERAL - 435% - BB (BB MBABERR
MEREERMFEIRE - FR_FTRFNRE
Big(HFR) - AL RBREMAREED -« &
BEMEsthinee B RER PRSI FER
MER  RALEPER T AFHBERLR
WY EBR—RELETEBMEERREREE -

BEFBELE 64 BEB(HR)EM . B
ARENATFRPBEEREEMER > LR
—NAOFERYKRBERBEERRFHEIL 22
ERBE - BAAR-NMA_FNBRER(ER)
HEAREEERLR AAETSTREZEMTRE
i



Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to a high standard of corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business in
compliance with the principles and code provisions (“Code Provisions”)
set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code")
contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
(“Listing Rules"”), except for deviations from Code Provision A.4.1 which
is explained below.

Under Code Provision A.4.1, the non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Although the
independent non-executive directors do not have a specific term of
appointment, all the existing directors of the Company retire by rotation
at least once every three years pursuant to Article 116.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices to
ensure that these continue to meet the requirements of the CG Code.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Company has formalised and adopted written terms on the division
of functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the management.

The Board provides leadership and approves strategic policies and plans
with a view to enhance shareholder interests while the day-to-day
operations of the Company are delegated to the management.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with a view to
ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations
are followed.

Each director is normally able to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making
request to the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report
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The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to the Chief Executive and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the abovementioned officers.

The Board has the full support of the Chief Executive and the senior
management to discharge its responsibilities.

Composition

The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience
necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its business
needs.

The Board of the Company comprises the following directors:
Executive Directors

Mr. David An (Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive)

Mr. Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas

Ms. Liu Zhijun

Mr. Zhang Lei

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Li Wai Keung (Chairman of Audit Committee and Member of
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Liu Jian (Chairman of Remuneration Committee and Member of
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee)

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony (Chairman of Nomination Committee and
Member of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee)
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors bring a wide range of business
and financial expertise, experiences and independent judgement to the
Board. Through active participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in
managing issues involving potential conflict of interests and serving on
Board committees, all independent non-executive directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

Appointment and Succession Planning of
Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent
procedures for the appointment and succession planning of directors.

Although the independent non-executive directors do not have a specific
term of appointment, all the existing directors of the Company retire by
rotation at least once every three years.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as
to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing
and professional development to directors whenever necessary.
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The individual attendance (either in person or through other electronic REBEE—Z—ZF+_A=+—HILFE &%
means of communication) record of each director at the meetings of the FEREEE - 2E2Z8T HTHNEZESRERE
Board, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and E& € 2@ HE (BHBFNEBRE TR
the Audit Committee during the year ended 31 December 2010 is set 75 =) slsk# 520 -

out below:
Attendance/Number of Meetings held
during the tenure of directorship
RESAHALE EETERRY
Nomination Remuneration Audit

Directors Board Committee Committee Committee
- Ezg REZEg FHzES EREES
Executive Directors HITEFE
David An (Chairman of the Board HiZ(EESFE

and Chief Executive) FTEA) 8/8 N/A 7N A 17 N/ANEFR
Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas REEE 8/8 N/ATER N/ATER N/ATNE R
Liu Zhijun 25 8/8 N/A N E N/ATiE N/A i A
Zhang Lei RE 8/8 N/ATERA N/ATNEFA N/A TN A
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUHHTEE
Li Wai Keung (Chairman of Audit Committee) FER(BRZEETE) 8/8 11 (7l 2/2
Liu Jian (Chairman of Remuneration Committee) A (FHZEES+E) 8/8 11 11 2/2
Chan Chun Wai, Tony (Chairman of BRIRIE (725

Nomination Committee) ZEE1E) 8/8 11 17 212
Practices and Conduct of Meetings SRERRTA
Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors at least 14 EEZEfl@REHINERETAHNRERES
days before the meetings. For other Board and committee meetings, #E - EREMtE=eezNEE8ees K

reasonable notice is generally given. SEHEEAEM -
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Corporate Governance Report

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a director,
will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association also contain provisions
requiring directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the
quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such directors
or any of their associates have a material interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that roles of Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual.

The Company supports the division of responsibility to ensure the
balance of power and authority. However, in view of the fact that the
Group’s core business is carried out singularly by its subsidiary, GD
(Panyu), and the fact that the Chief Operating Officer, China (de facto
Chief Executive), who managed the core business, is a separate person,
the Board consider there is no necessity to a separate Chief Executive at
the Group level.

The Board has full confidence in Mr. David An and believes that his
appointment of the posts of chairman and chief executive is beneficial
to the business prospects of the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written terms
of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are posted
on the Company’s website and are available to shareholders upon
request.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses.

Nomination Committee

All the three independent non-executive directors are the members
of the Nomination Committee and Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony is the
chairman of the committee.
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The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
Board composition, developing and formulating relevant procedures for
nomination and appointment of directors, making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment and succession planning of directors,
and assessment of the independence of the independent non-executive
directors.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships by making reference to
the skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and
time commitments of such individuals, the Company’s needs and
other relevant statutory requirements and regulations. An external
recruitment agency may be engaged to carry out the recruitment and
selection process when necessary.

The Nomination Committee met once during the year ended 31
December 2010 to ensure that the Board has a balance of expertise,
skills and experience appropriate to meet the requirements of the
business of the Company.

On 30 March 2010, the Nomination Committee recommended the re-
appointment of Mr. Zhang Lei, Mr. Liu Jian and Mr. Chan Chun Wai,
Tony standing for re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 19 May 2010.

Remuneration Committee

The Chairman of the Board and the three independent non-executive
directors are the members of the Remuneration Committee and Mr. Liu
Jian is the chairman of the committee.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy and
structure and remuneration packages of the executive directors and the
senior executives. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration
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The Remuneration Committee is to review the remuneration policy
and structure and determine the annual remuneration packages of
the executive directors and the senior executives and other related
matters. The Human Resources Department is responsible for
collection and administration of the human resources data and making
recommendations to the remuneration committee for consideration.
The Remuneration Committee consults the Chairman and/or the
Chief Executive of the Company about these recommendations on
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year ended 31
December 2010 to approve the special bonus recommended by the
management of the Company.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises the three independent non-executive
directors (including two independent non-executive director who
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise) and Mr. Li Wai Keung is
the chairman of the committee. None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing external
auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@) To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items before submission to the Board.

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditors by reference
to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of external auditors.

() To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, and risk management system and
associated procedures.

(d) To review the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
measures, including the functions of account and financial
reporting, reviewing the adequacy of the Group’s human
resources, qualifications and experiences of staffs, training they
received and the relevant budget.

The terms of reference of Audit Committee are updated from time to
time and consistent with the terms set out in the Code Provision. The
Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
duties and has access to independent professional advice if considers
necessary.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2010 to review the financial results and reports, financial
reporting, internal control and compliance procedures.

There is no material uncertainty relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as going
concern.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code’’) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and the directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2010.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the ""Employees Written Guidelines’’) for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by
the employees was noted by the Company.

Responsibilities in respect of the Financial
Statements and Auditors’ Remuneration

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2010.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure
with defined lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation of
responsibility and authority to the senior management.

The Group's internal control framework, covering all material controls
including financial, operational and compliance controls is established.
The internal control framework also provides for identification and
management of risk.

The management is accountable to the Board for operating and
monitoring the system of internal control and for providing assurance
to the Board that it has done so. The Board forms its own view on
effectiveness after due and careful enquiry based on the information and
assurances provided to it.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND
RELATIONS

INVESTOR

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on
resolutions at shareholders’ meetings are contained in the Company’s
Articles of Association. Details of such rights and procedures are
included in all circulars to shareholders convening shareholders’
meetings and will be explained during the proceedings of meetings.
All resolutions proposed at the shareholders’ meetings will be voted by
poll. The poll voting results will be posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company immediately after the relevant shareholders’
meetings.

The shareholders’ meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The Chairman
of the Board as well as chairmen of the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, or in their absence,
other members of the respective committees, and where applicable, the
independent Board committee, are available to answer questions at the
shareholders’ meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual directors.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships
with its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast
of the Company'’s developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with
in an informative and timely manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains a
website at www.hansenergy.com, where extensive information and
updates on the Company’s business developments and operations,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are posted.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and
the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 34.

Taking into account of tremendous ongoing capital commitment of
the Group for those under going construction works, the directors do
not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2010 (2009: Nil). However, the Board of Directors will
determine dividend distribution policies once the Group has secured
long-term stable income by successfully entering into long-term leases
with our customers during the year.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details in movement in share capital of the Company are set out in note
23 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

The amounts and particulars of material transfers to and from reserves
of the Group and of the Company during the year are set out on the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and in note 24 to the
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DIRECTORS o=

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this RAFERBEABREB AL ARRIZES
report were: =3

Executive directors HiTEE

David An (Chairman) BE(F/)
Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas HEH

Liu Zhijun 2IEE

Zhang Lei RE
Independent non-executive directors BUHBTEE
Li Wai Keung FEo

Liu Jian 22

Chan Chun Wai, Tony PR (E

Mr. Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas, Ms. Liu Zhijun and Mr. Li Wai Keung shall  &&85c4 ~ 2IEE L+ R EEEEBREEE
retire by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at  fTZRFEEFAE LHESE - EREZERMA[E
the forthcoming annual general meeting pursuant to Article 116. 11615 - REFEERUMERS EREE -

The term of office of each of the independent non-executive directorsis  SEIENTES ZEHEEIZAQRAZKER
the period up to his retirement as required by the Company’s Articles of ~ #BAFREREZ B ALE -
Association.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming ~ FTA#RAIERITZRRAFTAS FERET Y
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or  E% - EBEA QB K ETMHEBE ARG AE
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within ~ ER —FE RN THE CEAERERIN) M 1L
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory  ZR&E&H -

compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS EZRKR$ - HERGOGREEZ S
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND zZREZRXRE
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2010, the interests and short positions of directors RZZ—ZF+=A=+—H ' AR RIEZ LK
of the Company and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and %

2B ANARR R REREAE (EERES

EBRRERARIR —ZB-2FFR
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Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Number of shares

RNRBEREE0.108 T2 Bk

Approximate percentage
to the issued share
capital of the Company

EEARAERITREZ
ROBE BHAESH
Name of director Nature of interest Long Positions Short positions Long Positions Short positions
EEps BmitE #R wA #AR KE
Mr. David An B2 54 * Corporate 73 2,548,203,980 Nil & 68.27% Nil £
(Note Hizt 1)
Personal fE A 218,390,000 Nil £ 5.85% Nil £

Note:

1. The shares are held directly as to 209,773,980 shares by Extreme
Wise Investments Ltd (“Extreme Wise”) and 2,338,430,000 shares
by Vand Petro-Chemicals, both of which are wholly-owned by
Mr. David An. By virtue of SFO, Mr. David An is deemed to have
corporate interest in the 2,548,203,980 shares.

* Mr. David An, being a director of the Company, is also acting as
the Chief Executive of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, none of the directors
of the Company and their associates had any interest or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations which had to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme detailed in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debts securities (including debentures) of, the
Company or any other body corporate and none of the directors, their
spouses or children under the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights.
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1. ZER’HFAF209,773,980 0% £ Extreme
Wise Investments Ltd ([ Extreme Wise )
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company, or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly and indirectly, subsisting at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There were no transactions which were required to be disclosed as
connected transactions in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to a high standard of corporate governance.
The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
Principles and the Code Provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The
Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices to ensure
that these continue to meet the requirements of the Code Provisions.
Throughout the year 2010, the Company has complied with the Code
Provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 15
to 23.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2010, shareholders (other than directors of the
Company) who had interests and short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which have been disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company
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Notes:

1. The shares are held directly as to 218,390,000 shares by Mr. David
An personally, as to 209,773,980 shares by Extreme Wise and
2,338,430,000 shares by Vand Petro-Chemicals, both companies
being wholly-owned by Mr. David An. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
David An is deemed to be interested in the 2,766,593,980 shares.
Mr. David An is a director of Extreme Wise, Vand Petro-Chemicals
and the Company.

2. The shares are held directly by Pony HK World, indirectly wholly-
owned by Dubai World Corporation.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, the Company has not
been notified by any persons (other than directors or the chief executive
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 16 December 2002,
the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “scheme”) for the
purpose of enabling the Company to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees and attract resources that are available to the Group and to
provide the Company with a means of giving incentive to, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to such persons
who contribute or may bring benefit to the Group. The scheme remains
in force for a period of 10 years from adoption of such scheme and
expires on 15 December 2012.

Under the scheme, the board of directors of the Company (the
“directors”) may at their discretion grant options to (i) any director of
the Company or any company in which the Company holds an equity
interest; or (ii) any employee of the Company or any company in which
the Company owns any equity interest; (iii) any consultant, agent,
business affiliate, professional and other advisor, business partner, joint
venture partner, strategic partner, or any supplier or provider of goods
or services to the Company or any subsidiaries of the Company as may
be determined by the directors from time to time to subscribe for the
shares of the Company (the “shares”).
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Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date of grant,
upon payment of HK$1 per option. The maximum number of shares
in respect to which options may be granted under the scheme shall
not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company on the
date of adopting the scheme. The limit may be refreshed at any time
provided that the new limit must not be in aggregate exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the shareholders’
approval in general meeting. However, the total number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the scheme and any other scheme of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to
time. The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted to any individual in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the shares in issue on the last date of such 12-month period
unless approval of the shareholders of the Company has been obtained
in accordance with the Listing Rules. Options granted to substantial
shareholders or independent non-executive directors in excess of issued
share capital of the Company or with a value in excess of HK$5 million
must be approved in advance by the shareholders of the Company.

Options may be exercised at any time from date of grant of the
share option to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant as may be
determined by the directors. The exercise price is determined by the
directors, and will not be less than the higher of the closing price per
share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the
date of the grant of the options and the average closing price per
share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of the grant of the
options.

On 7 May 2008, the Board approved to grant options in respect of
72,400,000 ordinary shares to the Company’s directors and senior
management under the scheme. Details of the share options granted are
set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Information in relation to share options disclosed in accordance with the — RIZEE BT _E TR BT I 25 R R A 9 &R an

Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange was as follows: TS 8
Granted/
Number of exercised/ Number of
Period during Exercise share options  lapsed/cancelled share options
which share options price outstanding at during outstanding at
Eligible person Date of grant are exercisable per share 1172010 the year 31/12/2010
RZ8-%%
R-%-%F EhRd/ t=A=t-A
—-A-BH&f e/ %%/ HATRERE
RERAL REBH BREGESE  SRORE RRRE HE i P i |
DIMAYYYY DIMINYYY HKS
B/R/& B/R/& AL
Executive directors HrEs
Mr. Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas B85 % 7/5/2008 7/5/2008-7/5/2011 050 8,500,000 - 8,500,000
Ms. Liu Zhijun HEELL 7/5/2008 7/5/2008-7/5/2011 050 8,500,000 - 8,500,000
Mr. Zhang Lei RELE 7/5/2008 7/5/2008-7/5/2011 050 8,500,000 - 8,500,000
Independent Bk
non-executive directors  #{TES
Mr. Li Wai Keung FRMTE 7/5/2008 7/5/2008-7/5/2011 050 200,000 - 200,000
Mr. Liu Jian Bt 7/5/2008 7/52008-7/5/2011 0.50 200,000 - 200,000
Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony  RIRE%E 7/5/2008 7/5/2008-7/5/2011 050 200,000 - 200,000
26,100,000 - 26,100,000
Employees ks 7/5/2008 7/5/2008-7/5/2011 050 46,300,000 - 46,300,000
72,400,000 - 72,400,000
MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS FERFRIEER

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five —AKEARFEAREFHEAREEZ BHEFLD
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BORROWINGS

Details of movements in the Group’s bank loans during the year are set
out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association although there is no restriction against such rights
under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had a workforce of approximately
400 (2009: 290) employees, 390 (2009: 270) of which worked for the
terminals. Every year, the Group devises a budget which states total
salary and bonus plan for the year to encourage the Group’s employees
to contribute their best efforts and to make maximum economic benefits
to the Group. In accordance with the relevant government regulations
in the PRC, the Group is required to cover social insurance, including
but not limited to retirement, medical, workman compensation and
unemployment insurance as well as housing fund for every qualified
employee in the PRC. With these insurance policies and staff benefits,
the Group hopes to provide a reasonable welfare for each qualified
employee.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

PUBLIC FLOAT

For the year ended 31 December 2010, based on the information that
is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the
directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules.

LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2010, there were no material contingent liabilities
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF HANS ENERGY COMPANY
LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hans Energy
Company Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group”) set out on pages 34 to 99, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2010, the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

23 March 2011

Independent Auditor’s Report
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=

for the year ended 31 December 2010
B = F—FE+ = =1 —AIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETTST)

idated Income Statement

2010 2009
—E-ZF —TTNE
Note $'000 $'000
Kz F FT
Turnover =G 3 159,615 158,944
Cost of sales SHERKA (55,052) (50,343)
Gross profit EFI 104,563 108,601
Other net income Hfh e F 58 4 2,222 1,579
Administrative expenses 1T E A (42,561) (43,142)
Profit from operations R 64,224 67,038
Finance costs B 75 A AN 5@) (679) =
Profit before taxation B A& A 5 63,545 67,038
Income tax FriS®t 6(a) (20,738) (19,085)
Profit for the year FRRF 42,807 47,953
Attributable to: PEG
Equity shareholders of the Company RAARRER 37,020 41,746
Non-controlling interests PR i A 5,787 6,207
Profit for the year FR=A 42,807 47,953
Earnings per share BREF 10
— basic — &K 0.99 cents 1l 1.12 cents flli
— diluted —#E 0.99 cents 1l 1.12 cents {ll
The notes on pages 41 to 99 form part of these financial statements. HREMNBZE9E Mz REKILEFVBREK 2
— &5




D  Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (G
SEETHWERK

I —FT—FFF+-A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LETSR)
2010 2009
—E-2F ZEZENF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Profit for the year FRIRF 42,807 47,953
Other comprehensive income FAHEMEZEKE
for the year
Exchange differences on translation HEHE QA
of financial statements of ISRk 2 B R
subsidiaries 21,988 867
Total comprehensive income FAZHEKRERE
for the year 64,795 48,820
Attributable to: FEfk
Equity shareholders of the Company RAARRER 57,245 42,544
Non-controlling interests PR i A 7,550 6,276
Total comprehensive income FR2HEK AT
for the year 64,795 48,820
The notes on pages 41 to 99 form part of these financial statements. REA BEZRI9E 2 Mzt RAAK I F IRk 2 —
5 o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

MEEERER
at 31 December 2010

R-F—FF+_A=1—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LETTHT)
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETAF
Note $'000 $'000
Kz F FT
Non-current assets RBEE
Fixed assets BEE&EE
— Property, plant and equipment o/ E RN 12(a) 284,378 258,046
— Construction in progress —EETRE 12(a),(b) 1,418,758 976,598
— Interests in land held for —RIBEKEREREE A
own use under operating leases Z T HhRERS 12(c) 19,060 19,921
Prepayments for construction costs BREERK AN 2 TR FRIE 21,176 34,056
Intangible assets ERAE 13 2,993 3,180
1,746,365 1,291,801
Current assets RENEE
Interests in land held for RIFEEHERIEAR
own use under operating leases Z T HkERS 12(c) 1,554 1,502
Inventories — consumable parts & —EfEm 3,462 2,900
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk HAth el sE 15 72,104 8,947
Cash and cash equivalents BekIReEEEEB 16 76,429 342,421
153,549 355,770
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals HEtE M RIAKRTIRER 17 99,989 108,161
Deferred revenue EFEW 18 3,634 38,527
Bank loans IRITER 19 10,200 397,502
Current taxation ZNERFRIE 20(a) 5,694 4,707
119,517 548,897
Net current assets/(liabilities) REEE (8E)FE 34,032 (193,127)
Total assets less current liabilities HmEERRBARS 1,780,397 1,098,674




- > Consolidated Balance Sheet IR

SEEERER
at 31 December 2010

R=ZF_ZFr—_f=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LETSR)
2010 2009
—E-2F ZEThEF
Note $000 $'000
Hiat Fr T
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIEE & 20(b) 7,420 7,977
Bank loans RITER 19 1,116,469 499,592
1,123,889 507,569
NET ASSETS EEFE 656,508 591,105
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ERRF#E
Share capital %N 23 373,264 373,264
Reserves G 229,127 171,274
Total equity attributable to equity A E R R (LB
shareholders of the Company 602,391 544,538
Non-controlling interests FEEEIR R 54,117 46,567
TOTAL EQUITY R 656,508 591,105

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 R=-Z——F=F - +=HEE= oL LFE

March 2011. Tz o
David An Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas
BiE V¥ |
Chairman Executive Director
FiE HITEE
The notes on pages 41 to 99 form part of these financial statements. REA BEZRI9E 2 Mzt RAAK I F IRk 2 —
5 o
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I B:alance Sheet
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EERER

at 31 December 2010

B —F—FEF - F=+—HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETTST)

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZTTNF
Note $'000 $'000
Kz F FT

Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment LE BN & ] 12(d) - 68
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR ZI&E 14 1,052,848 1,054,339
1,052,848 1,054,407

Current assets REEE
Other receivables H b fE U RIE 15 356 358
Cash and cash equivalents RekHeEEIER 16 1,816 3,755
2,172 4113
Current liabilities REEE

Other payables HAb e FRIE 1,069 1,149
Net current assets RENEERE 1,103 2,964
NET ASSETS BEERE 1,053,951 1,057,371

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERRFE
Share capital f& A 23 373,264 373,264
Reserves (A 24 680,687 684,107
TOTAL EQUITY HRER 1,053,951 1,057,371

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23

March 2011.

The notes on pages 41 to 99 form part of these financial statements.

David An

R

Chairman

5

T

o

Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas
BEH
Executive Director

BITEF

RZZE——F=A-t=HEEZSEREE

BNE4BEE9H 2 HEREKRI ERBIHRER 2




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (G

T e Bk
rEEm
for the year ended 31 December 2010

I —FT—FFF+-A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LETET)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
KARRELRS
PRC  Share-based Non-
Share Share Special  Translation  statutory compensation Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium  reseve  reseve  reserve reserve losses Totll  interests equity
e Bt FER
Ba  RHEE  BEEE  ENRE  EREE  EMRE  ZiRE aft ki ing
(ote@)  (ote(d)  (note(d)  (ote(d)  (ote(e)
de)  hdw)  Ee)  WEw)  (Ee)
§1000 §1000 §1000 §1000 §1000 §1000 §1000 $1000 $1000 §1000
T r i iz S S S i 1 S
Balance at 1 January 2009 WoSEAE-R-RZER 3B 704 (514%9) 54817 31,947 618 (42689 498365 4091 5386%
Changes in equity for 2009: “EINEREAD:
Profit for the year EREH - = = = = = 41,746 41,746 6,207 47,953
Other comprehensive income Eh2Eks - - - 798 - - - 79 69 87
Total comprehensive income 2HhaEE - - - 198 - - 41,746 42,54 6,276 43820
Equity setfled share-based transaction ~ bEREEZRA%S - - - - - 3609 - 3,629 - 3609
Balance at 31 December 2009 HZZBNET2]
and 1 January 2010 =t-AR-%-3f
-f-RzEh w4 70417 (2514280 55615 31,947 9811 (385,148) 544538 46,567 591,105
Changes in equity for 2010: TE-3ERRAS.
Profitfor the year EmiH - - - - - - 37,020 37,020 5,78 0,807
Other compreensive income Eh2Eks - - - 20,205 - - - 20,05 1,763 21,988
Total comprehensive income tEhngE - - - 0225 - - 37,000 57,45 7550 64,795
Fouity setled share-based transaction ~ LEREE %5 - - - - - 608 - 608 - 608
Balance at 31 December 2010 HZZ-BE127
Zr-AeER WA M0ATT (251428 75840 31947 10419 (348,128) 602391 54,117 656,508
Notes: Hisr
(@) The application of the share premium account is governed by the (a) MO HBERZEMZFSEEATE(KET)
Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands. HE o
(b) The special reserve arose from the reverse acquisition in December (b)) ®FlEERE —_ZENFE+ - AzRKEmE

2004.

(c) The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of operations
outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 1(r).

(d) According to the articles of association and board resolution of
Guangdong (Panyu) Petrochemical Storage & Transportation Limited
("GD (Panyu)”), an amount not more than 10% of the profit before
taxation may be transferred to a PRC statutory reserve at the discretion
of GD (Panyu)'s directors.

(e)  Share-based compensation reserve represents fair value of employee
services in respect of share options granted under the share option
scheme as set out in note 22.

H oo

(0 EXRFEEBERLAERBAIMEEXBEHNTT
BERMELNMEELEZ/E - ZREETREM
() BT &Rt BOR R -

d REEE(EE)ARLLIFEREFERDA
(T2E(ER) DNARNERRESTSRER
ARES(ER) ESMBERBERTANEN T8
B 10% =F BURERE

() BRDFENREGIE M 22 T IRIRRE AR AT 2R
HEBREREENES RS2 ANE -
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

an\ IE%UILE’IEE

for the year ended 31 December 2010
B —F—FFEf = = —HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LETTST)
2010 2009
—E-2F ZEThEF
Note $000 $'000
Hiat Fr T

Operating activities R
Cash (used in)/generated from operations A& %% (FTH) FiiSH<  16(b) (2,492) 9,606
PRC Enterprises Income Tax paid BT B 2P (20,748) (16,348)
Net cash used in RS FT A

operating activities REFHE (23,240) (6,742)
Investing activities REEH
Capital expenditure VNS (389,865) (413,518)
Interest received B UF S 1,419 683
Proceeds from disposals of property, LEME - BRE R&ME

plant and equipment Z TS skIE 157 14
Net cash used in investing activities BRETEHFFABESFHE (388,289) (412,821)
Financing activities REES
Interest paid EAIALE (55,108) (24,381)
Proceeds from new bank loans HIRTTE RS RIE 1,229,976 555,912
Repayment of bank loans BEBRITER (1,036,151) -
Net cash generated from financing REEB G

activities HeFE 138,717 531,531
Net (decrease)/increase in cash HERBLEEER (BY),/

and cash equivalents 1 hnFEE (272,812) 111,968
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—B2ZHER

RE&EHEER 342,421 230,031

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SNEEZR# &) 25 6,820 422
Cash and cash equivalents R+=ZA=+—-HzH&

at 31 December RREZEEE 16(a) 76,429 342,421
The notes on pages 41 to 99 form part of these financial statements. HRFEABF99H 2 st RAEK L S M B HK 2



1 Significant accounting policies

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 2 provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected
in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2010 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(KBTI - BRIFHEHIEH)
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EYE s EES
%3 TR M EE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(KBTTIT - R IFEHHEH)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

(c)

statements (continued)

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 31.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of the entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights
that presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests (previously known as “minority
interests”) represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated income statement and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders
of non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities in
the consolidated balance sheet in accordance with notes 1(k)
or (p) depending on the nature of the liability.

1
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or jointly controlled entity.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(g)).

Fixed assets

(i)  Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 1(g)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing
costs (see note 1(s)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(KBTI - BRIFHEHIEH)
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idated Financial Statements
A HRRMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(KBTTIT - R IFEHHEH)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Fixed assets (continued)

(i) (continued)

- Buildings 5-30 years
—  Dock and storage facilities 5-37 years
—  Office equipment 5-10 years
—  Motor vehicles 5-10 years
—  Leasehold improvements Over the term of

the lease

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

(i)  Construction in progress represents dock and storage
facilities under construction and pending installation,
and is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note
1(g)). Cost comprises direct costs of construction as well
as interest charges, and foreign exchange differences
on related borrowed funds to the extent that they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest charges, during
the periods of construction.

Construction in progress is transferred to property,
plant and equipment when the asset is ready for its
intended use. No depreciation is provided in respect of
construction in progress.

(e) Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated amortisation
(where the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see note 1(g)). Amortisation of club memberships
is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of 17 to 20 years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(KBTI - BRIFHEHIEH)

EXRGETEBE#)
(f) HEEE

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1

(f) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form
of a lease.

(i)

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases, with the
following exception:

— land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous
lessee.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term.

fHAREEE AL (TmEA—R
RHR—FRINRZHEMK) M B RN
P15 7 H PR A9 A — IR 3K 2% 38 5 B ER
ER-—EEEEEXZREE A%
ZHRBNREE —HEY - ZEE
TyRIEE R P2 AR A E L
Nz L HEEh B2 A Z AR
e

() MFIrEEEEDH

AEENBEOFEZEE M
HEAEFNBAR D BB &
NBEEBEAREE DA
RREREHEREZEE
YERAEEEBRBERA
MoRRENE BN TN A
REERE - EATHISN -

- RELEHEEREERZ
i MAEBRENIREE
AREEAEEEE L@
ZEEY 2N ED R
B lenBERENEE
A ZMEE - EHZ
BFETHBRREBELEHEE
FARBRIN - Bt S -
Z M E 2 1A A A
B ARIVEC N btk o=
GIEGEVN S 2 S

(i) AHEHESHL

MAKREEAREHERSE
EREAE  EEEXHIRE
HESHMREN &t HE
NEEREEEPIE - B0
B H il ELAEBE 55 B 3t S AR A
B B A EE A A A R AR S RIRR
Sho HEBBGFERIRSD
R ASEE RN AR AKX
Mo - RAEHEEEELNS
SRR AR IR R AR R

PSR ERE L a REEK
RUABARENEE AA#E -

45



D |\otcs to the Conso

46

idated Financial Statements

SN=NEyE EE
:én“/T\ =] E\ ) #& |Z‘ At
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(KBTTIT - R IFEHHEH)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of current receivables

Current receivables that are stated at cost or amortised
cost are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about one or more of the following loss events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

—  significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where financial assets carried at amortised
cost share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past
due status, and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which
are assessed for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of current receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against trade receivable directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

—  fixed assets;

intangible assets;

investments in subsidiaries; and

non-current prepayments

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using the pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Inventories

()

@

(k)

Spare parts held for consumption by the Group are stated at
cost less any provision for obsolescence.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(g)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect
of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated cash flow statement.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
() Employee benefits

(i)  Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at the grant date after taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the options, the total estimated fair value of the share
options is spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On the
vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the option
is exercised (when it is transferred to the share premium
account) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained profits).
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 ERSFEX#E)

(m) Income tax (m) Fri8

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination) and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on undistributed profits of investments
in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Income tax (continued)

(n)

(o)

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis
or realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue represents unearned rental income received
in advance, which is recognised as revenue in profit or loss in
equal instalments over the periods covered by the lease term
(see note 1(q)(i)).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4= ANH

e MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 EREFBER#E)

(KBTI - BRIFHEHIEH)

MH

(m) FRE®i 2

(n)

(o)

- MAREMEEEREE M
HEBEERBERR—HBEE
BB A T B —TBEUR 2 {5
HAR :

- RA-ERRERE: %

o

- TRZERFER - KF
FETEERRSEBE
BREREHRERESRE
BEKAFECHBAE
A] LAY Bl Z BRI A+ 320
RMEESRAMHIEEE
RBEAGHEERE %
FRERZEEREHEZK
afg -

EBERIAREE

MRAEBLANARAREREZE
ﬁ%%&&%ﬁma&vﬁ%%ﬁﬂ
EMEINTEABITZEE ERER A
{’Eﬁ—baﬂaﬁﬂi} + Bl jph 5% B P SR 8K
BIAEZEMBEREE - MRE
EEREEA - AIREITEETEAT
BRI BRERERS -

AR A B R 2 2 FTREIE BV - 3R
?ﬁiﬁ%ﬁ*ﬁ@%%ﬁ%ﬁ{’ﬁﬁTﬁZ%# + Al
ERZAEERBEARAAE  BKE
Mzashm 2 AT R MR RIER SN » 20 R
FHEEARTFRERAZRAREMS
ERBELETREERDFE  AlER
BRUARAIE - BRIFBEN NG Z
ATREIEIRIE o

EFE WA

R A TR A R BRI 2 WA
REEHRNEES BEBRSERATIE
WA (R 1)) °

53



D |\otcs to the Conso

54

idated Financial Statements

SN=NEyE EE
:én‘vT =] E\ ) 3FE( |Z‘ At
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(KBTTIT - R IFEHHEH)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Other payables

Other payables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable.

(i) Port income is recognised in profit or loss upon
performance of the services.

(iii) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Translation of foreign currencies

The functional currencies of the Company and its subsidiaries
in the PRC are Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi Yuan
respectively. The Group adopted Hong Kong dollars as its
presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains or losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was determined.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance
sheet items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
closing foreign exchange rates at the balance sheet date.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity
in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss
on disposal is recognsied.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
or ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use are complete.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)  the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, to control the Group or
exercise significant influence over the Group in making
financial and operating policy decisions, or has joint
control over the Group;

(i) the Group and the party are subject to common control;

(iii) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture
in which the Group is a venturer;
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(t)

(u)

(v)

Related parties (continued)

(iv) the party is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family
member of such an individual, or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence of such

individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred
to in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for
the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods, used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which
they are declared.
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Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued two revised HKFRSs, a number of
amendments to HKFRSs and two new Interpretations that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Of these, the following developments are relevant to
the Group's financial statements:

—  HKFRS 3 (revised 2008), Business combinations

— Amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate
financial statements

—  Amendments to HKFRS 5, Non-current assets held for sale
and discontinued operations — plan to sell the controlling
interest in a subsidiary

- Improvements to HKFRSs (2009)

- HK(IFRIC) 17, Distributions of non-cash assets to owners

—  HK(Int) 5, Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that contains a repayment on
Demand Clause

The issuance of HK(Int) 5 has had no material impact on the
Group's financial statements as the Interpretation’s conclusions
were consistent with policies already adopted by the Group. The
other developments resulted in changes in accounting policy but
none of these changes in policy have a material impact on the
current or comparative periods, for the following reasons:

—  The impact of the majority of the revisions to HKFRS 3, HKAS
27, HKFRS 5 and HK(IFRIC) 17 have not yet had a material
effect on the Group’s financial statements as these changes
will first be effective as and when the Group enters into a
relevant transaction (for example, a business combination, a
disposal of a subsidiary or a non-cash distribution) and there
is no requirement to restate the amounts recorded in respect
of previous such transactions.
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2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

The impact of the amendments to HKFRS 3 (in respect of
recognition of acquiree’s deferred tax assets) and HKAS 27
(in respect of allocation of losses to non-controlling interests
(previously known as minority interests) in excess of their
equity interest) have had no material impact as there is no
requirement to restate amounts recorded in previous periods
and no such deferred tax assets or losses arose in the current
period.

As a result of an amendment to HKAS 17, Leases, arising
from the Improvements to HKFRSs (2009) omnibus standard,
the Group has re-evaluated the classification of its interests
in leasehold land as to whether, in the Group’s judgment,
the lease transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the land such that the Group is in a position
economically similar to that of a purchaser. The Group has
concluded that the classification of such leases as operating
leases continues to be appropriate.

Further details of these changes in accounting policy are as follows:

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 3 (revised 2008), any
business combination acquired on or after 1 January 2010 will
be recognised in accordance with the new requirements and
detailed guidance contained in HKFRS 3 (revised 2008). These
include the following changes in accounting policies:

—  Transaction costs that the Group incurs in connection
with a business combination, such as finder’s fees, legal
fees, due diligence fees, and other professional and
consulting fees, will be expensed as incurred, whereas
previously they were accounted for as part of the cost
of the business combination and therefore impacted the
amount of goodwill recognised.

— If the Group holds interests in the acquiree immediately
prior to obtaining control, these interests will be treated
as if disposed of and re-acquired at fair value on the
date of obtaining control. Previously, the step-up
approach would have been applied, whereby goodwill
was computed as if accumulated at each stage of the
acquisition.
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2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Contingent consideration will be measured at fair
value at the acquisition date. Any subsequent changes
in the measurement of that contingent consideration
will be recognised in profit or loss, unless they arise
from obtaining additional information about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date within
12 months from the date of acquisition (in which case
they will be recognised as an adjustment to the cost
of the business combination). Previously, contingent
consideration was recognised at the acquisition date
only if payment of the contingent consideration
was probable and it could be measured reliably. All
subsequent changes in the measurement of contingent
consideration and from its settlement were previously
recognised as an adjustment to the cost of the business
combination and therefore impacted the amount of
goodwill recognised.

If the acquiree has accumulated tax losses or other
temporary deductible differences and these fail to meet
the recognition criteria for deferred tax assets at the
date of acquisition, then any subsequent recognition of
these assets, will be recognised in profit or loss, rather
than as an adjustment to goodwill.

In addition to the Group's existing policy of measuring
the non-controlling interests (previously known as
the “minority interests”) in the acquiree at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net identifiable assets, in future the Group
may elect, on a transaction by transaction basis, to
measure the non-controlling interest at fair value.

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS
3 (revised 2008), these new accounting policies will be
applied prospectively to any business combinations in the
current or future periods. The new policy in respect of
recognition in the movement of deferred tax assets will
also be applied prospectively to accumulated tax losses and
other temporary deductible differences acquired in previous
business combinations. No adjustments have been made to
the carrying values of assets and liabilities that arose from
business combinations whose acquisition dates preceded the
application of this revised standard.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LEBTTIT - RIFHEHIED)

SETBEREH (£)

- FAREHINUEREAAE
FHE o AR EZE[ERE
HHEERARDS  RIERT
EEREBEES T EAR
ESMREEBREFEZE#A
EZERBERZEINER (ZIER
RERERREBEHRARZ
E) o BE - WHAREBENRK
RA B ERRERERE - T
MU AR - KARKEFE
ZHBEREESHRKBEEE
ZEBE  BERERSEBA
HRAZRHE WX BIHER
BB L o

- KT E R BIEEE
S E AT R TR 2R - B
19 % 7 4 P MR B B 75 8 i ST B
BEEZRREE  EARE
B2 kBRI RN A S
o TEEER -

- BAKBERZOFERER (R
[DBBR R ) 5 RUEET 2
AT EEFR LG E
RIERIE TS 2 FFERR S 2 B
BHBERIN » RN E TR 2R
ERRZAAARBEFERST
Z IR o

RIKEBHBERELEANDE3H(=
ZRNFEFTAR) ZBERK  ZF
AT & AT RS ER A = AN AR 2R 2R
HRZ EM XA b6 - ARERIRLT
IR B B B &) 2 B R IR TR B S 2R A
ERBEXRBE KB RERE
BREEMAMREREER  (HIL
B B RARERTER B 2 EBA G
EAZBEXABEZIREEELR

B o
=

59



D |\otcs to the Consolidated Financial Statements O
e SRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(KBTTIT - R IFHEBHEH)

2 Changes in accounting policies (continued) 2 BITBERBE (E)
—  As aresult of the adoption of HKAS 27 (amended 2008), the - BAREWEBGEADE27R (=
following changes in policies will be applied as from 1 January TENEBFAR) LT EE RS
2010: R T —TF— A —HBEA

60

—  Any losses incurred by a non-wholly owned subsidiary
will be allocated between the controlling and non-
controlling interests in proportion to their interest
in that entity, even if this results in a deficit balance
within consolidated equity being attributed to the
non-controlling interests. Previously, if the allocation
of losses to the non-controlling interests would have
resulted in a deficit balance, the losses were only
allocated to the non-controlling interests if the non-
controlling interests were under a binding obligation
to make good the losses. In accordance with the
transitional provisions in HKAS 27, this new accounting
policy is being applied prospectively and therefore
previous periods have not been restated.

— If the Group acquires an additional interest in a non-
wholly owned subsidiary, the transaction will be
accounted for as a transaction with equity shareholders
(the non-controlling interests) in their capacity as
owners and therefore no goodwill will be recognised
as a result of such transactions. Similarly, if the Group
disposes of part of its interest in a subsidiary but still
retains control, this transaction will also be accounted
for as a transaction with equity shareholders (the
non-controlling interests) in their capacity as owners
and therefore no profit or loss will be recognised as
a result of such transactions. Previously the Group's
accounting policy is to treat such transactions as step up
transactions and partial disposals, respectively.
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- Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

— If the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the transaction
will be accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that subsidiary, with any remaining interest retained
by the Group being recognised at fair value as if
reacquired. In addition, as a result of the adoption of
the amendment to HKFRS 5, if at the balance sheet date
the Group has the intention to dispose of a controlling
interest in a subsidiary, the entire interest in that
subsidiary will be classified as held for sale (assuming
that the held for sale criteria in HKFRS 5 are met)
irrespective of the extent to which the Group will retain
an interest. Previously such transactions were treated as
partial disposals.

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKAS
27, these new accounting policies will be applied
prospectively to transactions in current or future periods
and therefore previous periods have not been restated.

- HK(IFRIC) 17 requires distribution of non-cash assets to
owners to be measured at the fair value of the assets
distributed. This will result in a gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss to the extent that the fair value of the
assets is different from their carrying value. Previously the
Group’s accounting policy is to measure such distributions
at the carrying value of the assets distributed. In accordance
with the transitional provisions in HK(IFRIC) 17, this new
accounting policy will be applied prospectively to distributions
in current or future periods and therefore previous periods
have not been restated.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

3 Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are provision of terminal,
transshipment and storage facilities services for oil and
petrochemical products.

Turnover represents port income and storage and transshipment
income. The amount of each significant category recognised in
turnover during the year is as follows:
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In 2010, the Group has two customers (2009: one) with whom
transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group's revenues. In 2010,
revenues from provision of storage and transshipment services to
these customers, including revenues from entities which are known
to the Group to be under common control with these customers,
amounted to approximately $111 million (2009: $92 million).
Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from the Group’s
major customers are set out in note 25(a).

Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities are
disclosed in note 11 to these financial statements.

Other net income

3 Turnover (continued) 3 EXEX(E)
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETHEF
$'000 $'000
Fr FT
Port income AR PN 6,804 8,975
Storage and transshipment income BT 17 R s A 152,811 149,969
159,615 158,944
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F—R)FPEARBETZIRHBAER
SEBAZI10% - R_Z—FF  MZZF
BERHEFFRERRBASZIERA - &
BASEENRZS TP AREZESR2ER
I 2 WA BB N BT (ZZETNEF
0.92f87L) - AAEEEIERFPELEER
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EEAEBETBERZEMFFR - SR
LU HRERMTE -

HAeb =588

2010 2009

—s-%F —TENF

$'000 $'000

Fr Tt

Interest income AN ON 1,419 683
Net foreign exchange loss ME 5 5 18 R (436) (40)
Others HAftb 1,239 936
2,222 1,579




5 Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
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BB RTE A DA 0RR (GEA) T EIEEE

EB
2010 2009
—z-%% —EENF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
(a) Finance costs (a) MFREA

Interest on bank loans IRITE KA E 55,108 24,381

Less: Borrowing costs capitalised W BNMEREETRR
as construction in progress ZIEERA (54,429) (24,381)
679 -

The borrowing costs during 2010 have been capitalised at a
rate of 4.86%-5.58% per annum (2009: 4.86%-5.18% per
annum) for construction in progress.

R-ZE—ZF
F| 2 4.86%-5.

N BEERNEAERE
58% (=TT N F:

4.86% —5.18% ) ENLATERTLIR -

2010 2009
—s-%F —TENF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
(b) Staff costs (b) BIA
Contributions to defined M) € R BGR R ET 2l
contribution e 2 SR
retirement plans 1,179 1,226
Salaries, wages and other benefits - TEREMER 32,578 28,253
Equity settled share-based s #EE 2 R
payments 608 3,629
Total staff costs B TR 34,365 33,108
(c) Other items (c) HfEB
Depreciation and amortisation YT N5 29,411 28,175
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEN N &
— audit services — EIZR 1,180 1,180
— review services — &R 380 380
(Gain)/loss on disposal of HEDE - BEKE&E
property, plant and equipment 2 (Wa) /518 (32) 12
Operating lease charge KEHEER
— buildings —1EF 3,794 3,788
Charitable donations mE1BR 613 -
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6 Taxation 6 I\
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income (a) mEBERANBIETR :

statement represents:

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZZEThEF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Current tax — PRC Enterprise NERFRIE —
Income Tax for the year FRPREEMEH 21,552 18,923
Deferred tax — origination and RIERIE —
reversal of temporary T = 8 2 B A K o
differences (note 20(b)) (Kt 20(b)) (814) 162
20,738 19,085

Notes: st -

64

@)

(ii)

No Hong Kong Profits Tax was provided as the Group
sustained a loss for Hong Kong Profits Tax purposes for the
year (2009: Nil).

Pursuant to the approval from the PRC authority issued
in 2002 regarding port operating business, one of the
subsidiaries in the PRC, Guangdong (Panyu) Petrochemical
Storage & Transportation Ltd. (“GD (Panyu)”) has been
granted certain tax relief whereby the profit for the five
years starting from its first profit-making year is exempted
from income tax in the PRC and the profit for each of the
subsequent five years is taxed at 50% of the prevailing
tax rate set by the local tax authority. The PRC Enterprise
Income Tax rate applicable to GD (Panyu) was 15%.

(@)

(ii)
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6 Taxation (continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income
statement represents: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ii)

(continued)

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth
National People’s Congress passed the Corporate Income
Tax Law of the PRC (“new CIT Law"”) which takes effect on
1 January 2008. Under the new CIT Law and in accordance
with the implementation rules and notices issued by the
State Council and the State Administration of Taxation
(collectively “Implementation Rules”), an entity established
before 16 March 2007 that was entitled to preferential
tax treatment prior to the new CIT Law is subject to a
transitional tax rate beginning in 2008 (“Transitional Tax
Rate”) before the new corporate income tax rate of 25%
applies. For companies currently enjoying a reduced tax rate
of 15%, the Transitional Tax Rate is 18%, 20%, 22%, 24%
and 25% in 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012 onwards
respectively. Under the grandfathering treatments of the
new CIT Law, GD (Panyu), which has not fully utilised its
five-year tax relief upon the implementation of the new
CIT Law, is allowed to receive the tax relief during the five-
year grandfathering period. The applicable tax rate of GD
(Panyu) for the year ended 31 December 2010 was 22%
(2009: 20%).

In addition, under the new CIT Law, dividends paid by
a foreign-invested enterprise to its foreign investors
are subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10% unless
reduced by treaty. Under the grandfathering treatments,
undistributed profits of a foreign-invested enterprise as at
31 December 2007 are exempted from withholding tax.
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BB EREBE(FRER
BEED  IR=—_FENEFE—H
—ARER - EHCEMEHE
T R AR B B S BT K B R B A 42
REW B AR KRB M FE
EMAMALD  AR=ZTTLF
= A+ BAIR Y B R #EITH G
BB ENZAREERGHE
WER B-TTN\EMAHE K
XM E25% ERARAR
BEBRE(BERE]) M - 3R
ZI5%BEBRENAR  R=ZT
ZNF - _TThhF - ZFT—F
F ZE—FRZT—_F
HBERED R A18% * 20%
22% * 24% K 25% ° £ ¥ 1> ¥
IR EZHMBUERET @ &
B (EB) NEMTRARIT &R
2EIHAFHBER - wER
RZFBIER G R FE N ER
BER BHE_T-—ZTF+=-A
S+t HLEFEER(EB)Z
BABREAR2L2% (ZZETAF:
20%) °

B EREERFBET - &
EEmAEARDIN SIEDLE
S EBIMNREE Z BB RSB
10% FEHIHE © 1 R ZHBORR G
T AECER-_FETLF+ =
A=+ —RAZARHOEFNBEH R
BANTEHIT
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6 Taxation (continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income
statement represents: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ii)

(continued)

At 31 December 2010, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of the Group’s foreign-
invested enterprise amounted to $227,456,000 (2009:
$154,111,000). Deferred tax liabilities of $11,373,000
(2009: $7,706,000) have not been recognised in respect of
the tax that would be payable on the distribution of these
retained profits as the Company controls the dividend policy
of the foreign-invested enterprise and the directors have
determined that the profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

6 WIE#E)
LREBERANNFIEE | @)

(a)

HizE - )

(ii)

(#)

RZE—ZTF+=ZA=+—
B "EEIECEZRDE
FEERA2ERERBEEZRS
H# A227,456,00070( — T T A,
& :154,111,0007C ) © A& A &
RER DRI E R R FHE
MENZHEERECHIES
511,373,000 ( Z T T L & ¢
7,706,0007T) © REA AR &=
FIZIMEREZREBE  ME
EEERETENA LK RS IR
FZARZARDBEAE o

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) REAREFAE 2B EX HE
accounting profit at applicable tax rate: ghalzARNT :
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZZEThE
$'000 $'000
Fr FT
Profit before taxation BRAE AT A 63,545 67,038
Notional tax on profit before tax, ZEATE 22%
calculated at the applicable tax ~ (ZZZN4F : 20%)
rate of 22% (2009: 20%) FTEZBRBRTR T 2 BiIE 13,980 13,408
Tax effect of non-deductible DA H 2 B e 2
expenses 2,792 2,450
Tax effect of non-taxable income FERFIUA 2 Bl 52 (755) (562)
Tax effect of tax losses not RERTEEE 2
recognised M 4,762 3,789
Others Hith (41) -
Actual tax expense BERFHIEX H 20,738 19,085
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7 Directors’ remuneration 7 EEME
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the EEMEBIEE BN TIEGIE 161 (KB
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: T
2010
—E—=F
Salaries, Equity
allowances  Retirement settled
and benefits scheme  share-based
Directors' inkind  contributions payments
fee  H# 2% B NERLE Total
£k RENKE SRR ZRAXE CE
§'000 §'000 §'000 $'000 §'000
i i i i i
Executive directors HrES
David An #E - 5,056 30 - 5,086
Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas B8 - 1,475 12 VAl 1,558
Liu Zhijun IEE - 1475 60 Al 1,606
Zhang Lei RE - 1,709 12 n 1,792
Independent non- BUkHAES
executive directors
Li Wai Keung £ 120 - - 2 b))
Liu Jian bl 120 - - 2 122
Chan Chun Wai, Tony BiRE 120 - - 2 122
360 9,715 114 219 10,408
2009
—EEhE
Salaries, Equity
allowances Retirement settled
and benefits scheme  share-based
Directors' inkind  contributions payments
fee  HEl 20 FR EREE Total
ESHS REMNE HE LR A
$'000 §'000 §'000 $'000 $'000
I S S T I
Executive directors HrES
David An #E - 5,103 30 - 5,133
Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas B8 - 975 12 426 1,413
Liu Zhijun IEE = 975 60 426 1,461
Zhang Lei RE - 1,209 12 426 1,647
Independent non- BUkHES
executive directors
Li Wai Keung £ 120 - - 10 130
Liu Jian 3z 120 - - 10 130
Chan Chun Wai, Tony BiRE 120 - - 10 130
360 8,262 114 1,308 10,044
During the year, no amount was paid or payable by the Company FR ARABMEENHENESTH T
to the Directors or any of the five highest paid individuals set Bt 2 8 Pl 1 & B = 3 A = AR A fa] A
out in note 8 below as an inducement to join or upon joining ©  UIRSIEFMBAREE S MARKES
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. There was no SEABEREE - £ - BMESTVITHIARK
arrangement under which a Director waived or agreed to waive any EEWEXRBERETAME -

remuneration during the year.
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8 Individuals with highest emoluments 8 mEaAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, RASBERERSHMALTH  HFEE
four (2009: four) are directors of the Company whose emoluments (ZE2ZNF : WB) ALTREARAESE -
are included in the disclosure in note 7 above. The emoluments in HeR EXHFTEZE - BT —RAL
respect of the remaining individual (2009: one) is as follow: (Z2ZNEF : —R)HMSIT :
2010 2009
—z-%% —FENF
$'000 $'000
Fr FT
Salaries and other benefits o & E AR A 810 765
Equity settled share-based A4 E 2 Ifn 2
payments 50 301
Contributions to defined ER PR IRG 2
contribution retirement plans Z AR 21 27
881 1,093
The emoluments of the remaining individual (2009: one) with the ZamETMALT(ZZETAE : —R)Z
highest emoluments is within the following band: BT LA T EE -
Number of individuals
AH
2010 2009
—ZT-ZF —TENF
Less than $1,000,000 454 1,000,000 7T 1 -
$1,000,001 to $1,500,000 1,000,001 7t % 1,500,000 7T - 1
9 Result attributable to equity shareholders of 9 ZAAFRRELZES
the Company
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the ARAARREGZEE RN BEEIE
Company includes a loss of $3,979,000 (2009: $7,501,000) which 3,979,0007C( —=EZ N4 : 7,501,0007T) °
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company. HERAR R EHREZ AR
10 Earnings per share 10 K&
Basic and diluted earnings per share BREXRBERR

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of $37,020,000 (2009: $41,746,000) and the weighted
average of 3,732,638,000 ordinary shares (2009: 3,732,638,000
ordinary shares) in issue during the year.

The diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic earnings
per share for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2010 as the
outstanding share options are anti—dilutive.

ERERAREERFTIBREFARRAZ
AR A R (G 25 F37,020,000T( =T F
JUEE © 41,746,000 70) KRB BT E @A NN
5% 3,732,638,000 L@ ( —FBFAN
£ : 3,732,638,000 J& & @A) 5T E o

HRFTARTEBREZZEKEESREA
NEERBENE HBEE_TTNAER
“E-EE+-_A=t+—-BIFEZEK
BERNEgRERBIER -



11 Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by entities, which are organised
by geography. In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has identified the following
two reportable segments. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

(a)

Xiao Hu Island Terminal (“XHIT"”): this segment represents
the Group's provision of terminal, transshipment and storage
activities carried out in Panyu, the People’s Republic of China
("PRC").

Dongzhou International Terminal (“DZIT"): this segment
represents the Group'’s provision of terminal, transshipment
and storage activities to be carried out in Dongguan, PRC.
DZIT is currently under construction and is scheduled to
commence its business operations in 2011.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group's senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of investments in
subsidiaries and other corporate assets. Segment liabilities
include other payable and accruals, deferred revenue
and current taxable payable attributable to the individual
segments, and bank borrowings managed directly by the
segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation
of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “profit from
operations” i.e. “adjusted earnings before finance costs and
taxes”. To arrive at “profit from operations”, the Group’s
earnings are further adjusted for items not specifically
attributed to individual segments, such as head office or
corporate administration costs.

11
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7 BRI
AEEERRNENS T EBERAY
%o REAMNAEESEETREEAR
PORIE SR KA 5 B AR R E R — B
27 R - AEEHBIE TRETRE S
8o AEEL WA GHIFMEE D B - A4
T2 ARS8 -

(a)

NREBER(/NERLED : D
RAEERFEARKME ((HE])
BEMFEERRHETE  EHLTE
ZFRE

ROMBIBR SR (RN A(LE]D) « bt
BAAKERNHBERZRZ REH
558 - B RITF 2% - RMNAEL
ERETHT  TER_FT——FF
FEEGEE -

EENREE

B EDBRRRDED BERM
5 ARBERSETHREEASRA
AT EREREAIHRE D ARG ZE
o BENAE:

DERRAE

DHEEBEMAERNEE  BVE
ERRHEE BTLBERRERAR
ZRENEMAREE - DA BEER
FBEMEMNRBRIRER  ETK
g N (B 5l 20 BB RE (G 2 AT IR - A K
BENBEEBBRZIRITREE -

WA RS2 B2 IRAI R E D BB E £ <
WARZEDBREE 2B RZEF
DAMEIEEEMEE 2 TEMHSE
# e

I 35> 0 PR A 2 7k 8 [
R B [RET AR A RBBA 2
ERBRF - B EERF]
RSB 2 5 FURE 3 4 o SRR R 5
B2 EE (I@EHATTRAR) fE
A -
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11 Segment reporting (continued) 11 DEBERE ()
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities () PH¥E -EEREE®W
(continued)
In addition to receiving segment information concerning RESEBLE RNz D EERIN
profit from operations, management is provided with ERENNEREEBRA - FIEWK
segment information concerning revenue, interest income, A~ ISR RIS IERBEE 2 H
finance costs and additions to non—current segment assets. EERS o
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments HE-_ZT—TFR-FTNF+_A
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management =T+ —BLEFEFRARETAEER
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of =ETHREREABNUDRERRETE
segment performance for the years ended 31 December 2010 DERIER 2 ERESIR T
and 2009 is set out below.
XHIT
PRACE
2010 2009
—E-2F —TThF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Reportable segment revenue AR E 9 FBUA 159,615 158,944
Reportable segment A 5 AP AR A
profit from operations 94,457 98,633
Interest income FEHA 1,405 666
Finance costs BARS R AR (492) =
DZIT is under construction and not yet commenced its RMACERETHEL - R —F
business operations as at 31 December 2010 and accordingly, FHZA=+—HREREREELKE
no segment information regarding the segment’s revenue, E At WEZIEESE T —
profit from operations, interest income and finance costs for TER_TTNFT_A=+—HI
the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009 are presented. FEZHHBBA - &£ RF - FEW
ARIIERA 2 D EBERE
XHIT DZIT Total
PMREE FHAELE @t
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-%% s -2-%% Z3INE “E-3F s
$'000 $'000 §'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
n T T T n T
Reportable segment assets IRENTEE 1,401,906 1,136,924 1,280,584 1034069 2,682,490 2,170,993
Reportable segment liabilities ~ AHREHBEE 1,155,101 956,915 872,519 639,724 2,027,620 1,596,639
Additions to non-current segment REZE+=A=F+-8
assets during the year ended IHEEMENZ
31 December ERSHBEE 124,733 16,033 294,388 445,155 419121 461,188
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11 Segment reporting (continued)

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment

11

e R AR

2 Ny =|
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(KBTI - BRIFHEHIEH)

(b) AHEDMUA - B BE

A
revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities REBGEZHER
2010 2009
—E-EF —TThEF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Revenue 'ON
Reportable segment revenue AR E D BB A 159,615 158,944
Consolidated turnover hRE LR 159,615 158,944
Profit Y Al
Reportable segment Al ¥R 5 B A & T
profit from operations 94,457 98,633
Unallocated other net income AR5 Bt L W a5 RR 450 27
Unallocated head office ROBEIBR AR ZH
and corporate expenses (31,362) (31,622)
Consolidated profit before AR e BR B AR A
taxation 63,545 67,038
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets ARG DA EE 2,682,490 2,170,993
Elimination of inter-segment R EH S HBE 2 FEUGRIE
receivables (803,443) (548,359)
1,879,047 1,622,634
Unallocated head office RO R AR EE
and corporate assets 20,867 24,937
Consolidated total assets e EEE 1,899,914 1,647,571
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11 Segment reporting (continued) 11 DEBERE ()
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) IMEDIHBA B8 BEE
revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities REGEZHER @
(continued)
2010 2009
—E-ZF —TENF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Liabilities afE
Reportable segment liabilities AlREDEBEE 2,027,620 1,596,639
Elimination of inter-segment R > BB
payables 2 FEATEIE (803,443) (548,359)
1,224,177 1,048,280
Unallocated head office RO BL4BEB
and corporate liabilities RATIEE 19,229 8,186
Consolidated total liabilities GEHEaE 1,243,406 1,056,466
(c) Geographic information () HEER
The following table sets out information about the NREFIF R (1) A= ERSNEBRFF
geographical location of (i) the Group'’s revenue from external BRZBARNAEEZEEEE « &
customers and (ii) the Group’s fixed assets, intangible FAE - IEmETENFHIE ([ EIER
assets, non-current prepayments (“specified non-current BEE ) FEMEZ ER - BT
assets”). The geographical location of customers is based 3 [ A TR AR TS 2 s B R KR - E5E
on the location at which the services were provided. The FER BN & EFTIE S A B BE 2 BRR AT
geographical location of the specified non-current assets is TEMD B AR KR

based on the physical location of the asset.

Revenues from Specified
external customers non-current assets
HBEFFEZBA EEFRBEE
2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-Bf “ETNE “E-Zf —ZTNE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr T Tr T
Hong Kong &b - - 3,610 4,086
PRC (excluding HE(TEIEEE)
Hong Kong) 159,615 158,944 1,742,755 1,287,715

159,615 158,944 1,746,365 1,291,801
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12 EEEE

(a) The Group (a) &x&EH
Interests in
leasehold
[and held
for own
Use under
Dotk and operating Total
storage Office Leasehold leases fived
faitis  equipment Motor - improvements Construction ~ FAHERE asets
Buildings B BOE  vehides A Subdotd inprogress  EfEE  EREE
LE if:51 i ER N BRIRE  2idEE 8
§000 §000 §000 §000 §000 §000 §1000 5000 §000
n n n n n n n n n
(note(n)  (note(d)
(Ka)  (HEQ)
Cost: A
At 1 January 2010 RZE-3F-A-R 15,012 514,612 3,966 12578 149 546,317 976,598 080 1565805
Bichange adjusments Ei R 5 184826 106 I - 19929 13375 1492 64,19
Additons BE - 533 %5 47% - 1019 832410 - 43549
Disposal il - (2,959 (1,033) (813) - (4,805) - - (4,805)
Tranfer i - 368 - - - 33685 (33,685) - -
At 31 December 2010 RZE-2542A=1- 15,534 569,502 394 17,036 149 606205 1418758 438 2069345
Accumulated depreciation  EitfERES:
and amortisation:
At 1 January 2010 R-E-25-F-8 6,118 270,908 3,006 8,091 148 8821 - 1,461 309,738
Bxchange adjustmens EELS n 9974 66 16 - 10543 - 78 130
Charge fortheyear FRAEREY 50 2,16 3% 1,555 1 169 - 1517 290
Witenbackonisposals R E5AT - (2940) (1,005) (73) - (4,680) - - (4680)
At 31 December 2010 H5-5ET2A=1- 6,925 303,104 2462 9,187 149 e - 13,768 345,595
Net book value: BRRE:
At31 December 2010 RZE-BE2R=1- 8,609 266,39 152 7849 - 838 148758 061 113750
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12 EEEE#E)
(a) &&= (&)

12 Fixed assets (continued)

(a) The Group (continued)

Intrests in
leasehold
land held
forown
Use Under
Dock and operating Total
storage Offce Leashold leases fied
facltes ~ equipment Motor  improvemens Constuction~ BEAERE ESED
Buildings Bak S Vehickes g bl npoyes  HEEE  EREE
BF bR B nE hERg T ERIE s i

§000 §000 §000 §000 §000 §000 §000 000 §1000
r r r r i i r i r

(note (b) note c)
o) 1)

(ost: A
At 1 January 2009 RZEENE-F-B 14988 512703 3802 11,346 149 542,988 509,716 083 1095
Bichange adjusments Ei R U 816 4 1 - 81 1269 67 2197
Addtions BE - 918 160 1215 - 293 409M - 443,204
Transerfom prepayments~~ ENELIERE

for acquiston RN

ofand use rights - - - - - - 25,695 - 25,695
Disposals i - 819 - - - (818) - - 819
Transfer g - 9% - - - 9 993) - -
At 31 December 2009 REENETZA=1-A 15012 514612 3,96 12578 149 546,317 976,598 080 1565805
Accumulated depreciation  EitERES:

and amortisation:
At 1 January 2009 RZEENE-F-B 5,535 U078 155 6,864 14 26,15 - 19934 282088
Bichange adjustments EfAE y 4 4 I - 43 - 3 467
Charge for the year FRERRE 5T um 9 1216 U 16474 - 1,501 0975
Witten back on dsposdls HHERED - (192) - - - (19) - - (1)
At 31 December 2009 REENETZA=1-A 6,118 210908 3,006 8091 148 180 - 2467 309738
Net hook value; FERE:
At31 December 2009 REENET-A=1- 8,804 243,704 9%0 4481 1 258,046 976,598 043 1,256,067



12 Fixed assets (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Construction in progress as at 31 December 2010 comprises
costs incurred on the acquisition of land use rights and
the construction of port and storage facilities at DZIT and
XHIT, totalling $1,262 million and $157 million (2009: $904
million and $73 million), respectively which are expected to
commence operations in 2011.

The Group was granted the rights to use the land by the PRC
authorities with lease terms of 50 years. The net book value
as at 31 December 2010 includes an amount of $1,554,000
(2009: $1,502,000) which is disclosed as interest in land held
for own use under operating leases under current assets.

The Company
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12 EEEE#E)
(b) R=z—TF+-_A=+—BAzEE

(c)

IRBEREMNAERNRALE
Wi T b M R ER A O REFR
M2 K ARE H£12.6218 7t B 1.5718
T(ZZEZAF : 9.04E T K073
L) e MELIEHEAR=ZZ—F
REAHEREE -

ANEEEFTERFRER T L E
AE HEHANF  R_T—ZF
F+_A=Z+—AZEREFEARAD
£ £ %1,554,0000( ZETNF -
1,502,0007t) - ERREEEEE T
ZBBEEHEREE R 2 LR
PR o

(d) =2F

Office equipment

WAERE
2010 2009
—E-2F ZETNF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Cost: BN :
At 1 January m—H—8 737 736
Exchange adjustment HEE 34, 38 2 5 1
Disposals e (592) -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 150 737
Accumulated depreciation: REHE
At 1 January m—H—H 669 522
Exchange adjustment ME 34, e B 5 1
Charge for the year FEFE 68 146
Written back on disposals A SRR E (592) =
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 150 669
Net book value: BREEE :
At 31 December Rt+ZA=+—8 - 68
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13

14

Intangible assets

13 BLEE

The Group
rEE
Club membership
=t
2010 2009
—E-2F —TTNF
$'000 $'000
Frx T
Cost: A
At 1 January n—A—H 3,771 3,770
Exchange adjustment (RIS 17 1
At 31 December R+=A=+—H 3,788 3,771
Accumulated amortisation: Rt
At 1 January n—HA—H 591 390
Exchange adjustment HE 3, 3 1
Charge for the year FEHH 201 200
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 795 591
Net book value: BRTERE :
At 31 December R+=A=+—H 2,993 3,180
The amortisation charge for the year is included in “administrative REFEZBHERGAGEERR [THE

expenses” in the consolidated income statement.

Investments in subsidiaries

Al

14 RIBARZIRE

The Company

AT
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZEThEF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Unlisted equities, at cost FEETARD - HREKAR 1,051,500 1,051,500
Amount due from a subsidiary FEUL— ST /B A RIFKIE 1,348 2,839
1,052,848 1,054,339
The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest free and FELlﬁz— RMBARIZZRELAERKE . ©
have no fixed terms of repayment. B EE T ERE -

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group.

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note 1(c)
and have been consolidated into the Group financial statements.

TREHINEBYEAREEEE

BEZ B RRFE

RIBHIFE1(0) 5

E o REME AR RREN

BT YEAHAREEZHARHES -
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14 RABARIZRE (&)
ARARZZE—TFF+_A=+—HB2Z=E

14 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December

2010 are as follows: EMBRRZFBNT ¢
Particulars
of issued and
Place of paid up Attributable
incorporation/ share capital/ equity interest
Place of establishment  registered capital FE{5 R AE Principal
Name of subsidiary operation SMEL/ EBRGRHBERE  Directly Indirectly activities
WEAREE LEhE B2 it% MR A ¢4 Lk TEER
Guangdong Petro-Chemicals Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100%  Provision of
Company Limited Bt Bk - $20,000,000 administrative
BER At IERAR L% 20,000,000 7T services
RAEH AR
Oriental Point International Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100% Inactive
REERBRAR BB BB -$1,000,000 LEEK
L4mA% 1,000,000 7T
Timeslink Development Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% - Provision of
KRERERAA BB BB -$10,000 administrative
487 10,0007 services
RN R
Union Petro-Chemicals (BVI) Hong Kong  British Virgin Islands Ordinary shares 100% - Investment
Company Limited ("UPC") BB EBRAES - Us$100 holding
BREAAAEIBRAR LBR100ET REER
("ERER")
GD (Panyu) PRC PRC RMB220,000,000 - 92% Terminal,
B8 (%8) HE RE AR 220,000,0007T storage and
transshipment
B3 hEkEs
BMF BB IERER AT PRC PRC RMB4,820,800 - 92% Investment
(“hREA(L") HE hE  AR¥4,820,8007T holding
REER
REmEMERAERERAR PRC PRC RMB349,610,000 = 92% Terminal,
(“RIMERR") HE RE  AR349,610,0007 storage and
transshipment
B hERES
Note:  GD (Panyu) is a sino—foreign equity joint venture company and MizE : BB (FEB)R—RHPINEGERRA ' H

RAEEERRNEREZERA—REREE

AF] e

FFEAME and MBI are limited liability companies.
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15 Trade and other receivables

B 5 R HE R WGRIE

The Group The Company
P8 | NG|
2010 2009 2010 2009
—Z-Zf “ETNE —E-ZF ZETNE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Trade receivables B S EKFR 72,733 10,824 - -
Less: Allowance for doubtful B SRR (FEE15(0)
debts (note 15(b)) (6,131) (5,925) - -
66,602 4,899 - -
Prepayments and other FERTFIE R E A R
receivables 5,502 4,048 356 358
72,104

The amount of the Group’s and the Company’s prepayments

and other receivables expected to be recovered or recognised as
expenses after more than one year is $814,000 (2009: $1,139,000)
and $Nil (2009: $Nil) respectively. Apart from these, the
prepayments and other receivables are expected to be recovered or

recognised as expenses within one year.

(a) Trade receivables that are not impaired

Subject to negotiation, credit is generally only available to

major customers with well-established trading records. The
Group allows an average credit period of 30 days to its trade
customers. Further details on the Company’s credit policy are

set out in note 25(a).

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as

follows:

8,947 356 358

ANEERAR R FBHR —F &K E AR
BERAZENREREMERRIES B A
814,000t (ZZTZ L4 : 1,139,0007T) &
TR(ZETAE: Tm) c KRk zs - &8
PR T8 2 H A B WK IE T8 B I P — SF AU
Bk ABRBER -

(a) REESEURKIE

BIRKERTE  BRIRP—RER
TARMRGEHZEERF - K&
BT ESEPFIH30 R ZBRRY
BRAARREEBRRZE—TFHEH
PABTRE 25(a) ©

I 1R 3k A R R AR E 2 B B
SRR RO

The Group
rEH

2010 2009
—E-FF —ZTTNhF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Neither past due nor impaired R EA I ARE 66,486 4,667
Less than 1 month past due BE DR —EA 116 232
66,602 4,899




15 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(a)

(b)

Trade receivables that are not impaired

(continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
an independent customer that has good track record with
the Group. Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of this
balance as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balance is considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral over this balance.

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied
that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade receivables
directly (see note 1(g)(i)).

At 31 December 2010, the Group’s trade receivables of
$6,131,000 (2009: $5,925,000) were individually determined
to be impaired. The individually impaired receivables
related to customers that were in financial difficulties and
management assessed that the receivables are not expected
to be recovered. Consequently, specific allowances for
doubtful debts of $6,131,000 (2009: $5,925,000) were
recognised. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the
year represented the effect of change in exchange rates.

16 Cash and cash equivalents

(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

'A.|
,%ZI?/\

B A ¥k MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

B 5 K EA UK

(a)

(b)

(KBTI - BRIFHEHIEH)

N IE (42)

RBIEE 5 EWFR (@)

EEHMEARRE 2 EUGRIA T — 2
EAREEARECH CBIYRF,A
e RIEERR  EREREEY
ZRRERIELRERE - ARZE
FZzEEERWEEREE RAERD
AR R A ST 2 [E] o AN 5% (8] 30 4% 5t
& AR A A E @ o

B 5 YR 2R B B IR AR AR D
8 AR BIREA MR K E
HERR(E - RIEEEE 5 R ARGIA T
5 (RHFE1(Q)) °

R-B-—ZTE+-_A=+—H &
SEERETEEREZE S EKK
18 /6,131,000 7T ( :%%ni'
5,925,0007T) ° 8RR IE 2 FE W
HEVBEE 2 ZFER - éf@@'a}
HZERKFIETEWRE - Fitt - B
TERIFE RIB AR5 6,131,000 7T (=
TET A4 1 5,925,0007T) © AEEY
ER I EERREEAERR

FRREEEEZEDREXLBH

= 45
=

16 RERREEHEIER

Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) HEeRRESESEEBBE
The Group The Company
PN 1] b YN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-%F “ETNE —-%F —FTNF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T Tr T
Time deposits EBER 21,154 159,001 - -
Other cash and HitRe
cash equivalents REEEBER 55,275 183,420 1,816 3,755
76,429 342,421 1,816 3,755
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16 Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

17

18

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to

16 RERRELEEEE (&)

(b) RBEAT R EEE XK

cash (used in)/generated from operations: B)/ FBBEE YR :
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZEThEF
Note $'000 $'000
Bzt Fr Tt
Profit before taxation FRA A e A 63,545 67,038
Adjustments for: BATESIEEL A -
Interest income FBUA (1,419) (683)
Finance cost AR DN 5(a) 679 -
Depreciation and amortisation e R iH 5(c) 29,411 28,175
Equity settled share LARRME#EE
— based payment expenses Z A 5(b) 608 3,629
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property,  HEWE  BE L& E
plant and equipment 2 (Wz),/EiE 5(c) (32) 12
Exchange differences ME N = E (4,499) (66)
Changes in working capital: EEEe 2B
(Increase)/decrease in inventories GEREABRG
— consumable parts (38hn),/m (449) 298
Increase in trade and B 5 K H th FEUGRIE
other receivables bl (61,400) (1,572)
Increase in other payables H A FERI RIS N 6,423 4,166
Decrease in deferred revenue IR a R (35,359) (91,391)
Cash (used in)/generated RS (FTR),/
from operations FisiRi<e (2,492) 9,606

Other payables and accruals

All of the other payables and accruals, apart from retention
payables of $19,263,000 (2009: $12,003,000) that are expected
to be settled after one year, are expected to be settled within one
year.

Deferred revenue

On 29 December 2004, the Group entered into a lease agreement
(the “Lease Agreement”) with a third party (the “Lessee”) for the
lease of certain oil storage tanks of the Group (the “Qil Storage
Tanks”) and the non-exclusive use of related transshipment,
docking, loading and unloading facilities for a period of 20 years
from the date of delivery of the use of the Qil Storage Tanks at an
annual rental of approximately $90 million. Pursuant to the Lease
Agreement, the Group received five years’ rentals of approximately
$490 million on signing of the Lease Agreement and passed the
right to use the Oil Storage Tanks to the Lessee on 1 July 2006.

17

18

Htt A RIBERHREE

M EHRE S KA 19,263,000 T (ZZZT N
4 : 12,003,000 7T ) FEAR — & E A -
B HMENRERTIRERSBER —
FRER -

IEFEUR 8

“ETME+ AT NE  AEEEE
= ABADRAEERES T A
frriE ([ Aomir i) UKRIEEMEE
iy WHENEMERHRE—FI LAY
(T7849 1) - HEI A R A b
Bt A=+ 4 » 8FHE499,0008
T REBEHEAY  AEERFFENED K
BRAFHESM49ET LER_FTRF
A — BRI 72 (E BREEA Tk
HA e
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19 Bank loans 19 IRITER
(a) The analysis of the carrying amount of bank loans is as (a) HRITEFEREEMNIHAT :
follows:
The Group
rEEH
2010 2009
—B-FF —EZENF
$'000 $'000
Frx Tt
Current liabilities AN
Current portion of bank loans IRITERZRBHBD
(note 19(b)) (MFzE19 (b)) 2,400 397,502
Non-current portion of bank FEERER ZRITERZ
loans repayable on demand FETRENEL 7,800 -
10,200 397,502
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Bank loans RITER 1,116,469 499,592
1,126,669 897,094
All of the non-current bank loans, including the non-current FrAaIEREBRTED  afEEERE
portion of bank loans repayable on demand, are carried at BURITERZIERE D - RE
amortised cost. None of these non-current bank loans is SERRANEIBE o FEERZ S IERBRITE
expected to be settled within one year. T T@nN—FRER
(b) At 31 December 2010, the bank loans are due for (b) R=Z2—ZT&HE+=-A=+—8 " #17
repayment as follows: ERARN TSI 82 H EE
The Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
$'000 $'000
Frx T
Within 1 year or on demand R—EFE AN fEE R 2,400 397,502
After 1 year but within 2 years  —F&EBERER 590,015 204,430
After 2 years but within 5 years ~ FIF&ERFR 108,821 295,162
After 5 years hF# 425,433 -
1,124,269 499,592
1,126,669 897,094
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19 Bank loans (continued)

(c)

(d)

19 RITER @)

At 31 December 2010, the bank loans are secured as () R=Z—ZEF+=-A=+—8 - #R1T
follows: EXRZEHRERAOT :
The Group
AEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —TTNEF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Bank loans IRITER
— secured — G 1,116,469 669,950
— unsecured — KR 10,200 227,144
1,126,669 897,094
At 31 December 2010, the Group had banking facilities d R=ZFT—ZTF+-_A=+—8"

totalling $2,218,953,000 (2009: $750,218,000), of which
$1,116,469,000 (2009: $738,218,000) were secured by
certain of the Group's future non-cancellable operating lease
receivables (see note 26(b)). The facilities were utilised to the
extent of $1,116,469,000 (2009: $669,950,000).

Certain of the Group’s banking facilities of $402,000,000
(2009: $12,000,000) are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants relating to the Group’s net asset position as well as
minimum shareholding of the controlling shareholder of the
Company, as are commonly found in lending arrangements
with financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the
covenants the drawn down facilities would become payable
on demand. In addition, one of the Group’s bank loan
agreements contains clauses which give the lender the right
at its sole discretion to demand immediate repayment at
anytime irrespective of whether the Group has complied with
the covenants and met the scheduled repayment obligations.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants and is up to date with the scheduled repayments
of bank loans. The Group does not consider it probable that
the bank will exercise its discretion to demand repayment for
so long as the Group continues to meet these requirements.
Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk
are set out in note 25(b). As at 31 December 2010, drawn
down of $10,200,000 was made to the facilities (2009: $Nil)
and none of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities
had been breached (2009: None).

AEBZZROBEEE S H
2,218,953,0007t( = T T h F:
750,218,0007T) ' EH1,116,469,000
TT(ZZZT H.4F : 738,218,0007T) Jb
NAEEE T RRTAIMEEEHE
e R TE (RLHEE 26(b)) {EIE R « 2 &)
Rz mE&REEA1,116,469,000 7T (=
TT A 1 669,950,0007T) °

N &£ B o RIT

402,000,0007t( = & =

12,000,0007C) B EEBAEEE
7o s

RELBREARR  ZERHBER
HPBBBIT L2 ERLHEF R -
fAEERERE @R AREES
ARBARER - b AREZHE
FERTERBEZGERT L TE
FAZREIERE BE R 2 K& FRE
EENERN - MERAREETET
R RTEREEERE

ANEBETHEE N ELHZET I
BIERITERNTEEERBELE
B ARYTIRARTEITIEEE
KEZOET FEASEEEES
B 1 BB 2 w1 R T R 25(b) ©
RZZE—ZTF+_A=+—H &K
S BB A% £/ & 10,200,0007T
(ZBZNF : Tn) r BXRERE
AT ARENZE(ZETNF
) o



20 Income tax in the balance sheet

(a) Current taxation in the balance sheet

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (G

e R AR

2 Ny =|

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(KBTI - BRIFHEHIEH)

20 EEEERTZHAER

(a) BEEEBERPZAYPHER

represents:
The Group
rEE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNEF
$'000 $'000
Fr T

Provision for PRC Enterprise FAP BTS2 #E
Income Tax for the year 5,694 4,707

(b) Deferred tax liabilities recognised:

The movements of deferred tax liabilities during the year are
as follows:

(i)  The Group

(b) ERFELBIAEME
FRELBIER REBINT

iy AEKE

Construction in progress

EREIR
2010 2009
—g-%F —EEhE
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Deferred tax arising from: EEBERH :
At 1 January n—HA—H 7,977 7,803
Exchange adjustment Rk 257 12
(Credited)/charged to WX (GEA) 40k
income statement (MizE6(a))
(note 6(a)) (814) 162
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 7,420 7,977
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20 Income tax in the balance sheet (continued)

20 EEEBXRTZAEHR @)

(b) Deferred tax liabilities recognised: (continued)

(i) In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(m), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
in respect of the cumulative tax losses of approximately
$121 million (2009: $99 million) as it is not probable
that future taxable profits against which the losses can
be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction
and entity. The tax losses do not expire under the
current tax legislation.

(iii) At 31 December 2010, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of the Group’s foreign-
invested enterprise amounted to $227,456,000 (2009:
$154,111,000). Deferred tax liabilities of $11,373,000
(2009: $7,706,000) have not been recognised in respect
of the tax that would be payable on the distribution
of these retained profits as the Company controls the
dividend policy of the foreign-invested enterprise and
the directors have determined that the profits will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

21 Employee retirement benefits

The employees of GD (Panyu), SMNEIFR and #1241k are members
of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the
PRC government. GD (Panyu), MBI and AL are required
to contribute a certain percentage of the salaries, bonuses and
certain allowances of its staff to the retirement scheme. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to make the required contribution under the scheme.
The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
pension benefits associated with this scheme beyond the annual
contributions described above.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of $20,000. Contributions to the plan
vest immediately.

21

(b) CREELEBIRAME @)

(i) ARERMFE (M8 Z EFHEOR
B B B B R SRN K AT BE TR
BRANKRDAEEB ERPLE
MAEHEREER  AEER
BRARFRAEBRQ121ET
(ZZTNF : 0.9987T) RIE
EHIBEE - RIBBRITHE
HIAERR A EWE -

(i) RZBE—ZTF+=A=+—
H: BAEENEREZRD
RAEARzREGREER
& H#5227,456,000t (Z 2 F
L 154,111,00078 ) * AR
AIARA R 5K I F R 5 B F
8 T FE A 2 B TE T SRR AE R 18
B 11,373,000 ( Z T ZT A
 :7,706,0007T ) * REA &K
A EE S N E 2 R B
EOMESSEARETGRA
R RN IREZ A B Z AR EF
e

BERIKEAR

28 (FR)  RNBEEERDEALZEES
A3 BIER AT TR 0F 2 B 3¢ B IR AR IR A8 R &
Z2KE - BiE(EHER) RMNEERRHE
BERIREB T 258 - AL RE TR
ZHABE DR ZRIRET B » SRR
KREMFEME  AEBEZE-EEAR
Bzt BIEH PR 2 5K - Br Cat S #
O AEBEAEZE SRR SR/ E
WEEMEBANKEE -

REBNTRIEERBRBGIERAZES
RIBE B R 1 DR 5t & 551 R A 85
MRATESAHE (TRERFE ] - BESE
S ERBYXTEABTEZREHRTER
REt8l - RIBFRESEE - BERESAR
EBEEESBBUWAZ 5% TSI L #
R HELAE A AR R YR A 20,000 TT R © [A)
FHEIEH 2 fRBIR 558 TR 8 -



22 Equity settled share-based transactions

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 16 December 2002,
the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “scheme”)
for the purpose of enabling the Company to recruit and retain
high-calibre employees and attract resources that are available to
the Group and to provide the Company with a means of giving
incentive to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or
providing benefits to such persons who contribute or may bring
benefit to the Group. The scheme remains in force for a period
of 10 years from adoption of such scheme and expires on 15
December 2012.

On 7 May 2008, the Board approved to grant options in respect of

72,400,000 ordinary shares to the Company's directors and senior
management under the scheme. Details are as follow:

(i)  The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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22 LESEE2RNHRS

BE_ZTT_F+_-_A+~HABz
TRRARR  ARaRMN—IERREZ
([5z&t8l]) BUESARRBUEZERE
REATHZES  BAHAEEEEEZ
BR RARNAFREREBAZELHAS
EEER T RAE 2 AT EL BB - 5%
B B e R SRIREER - et
HIRAE BT T FHE—EA/R - L
R-ZT——&+—"A+ABE" -

K-BRNAFRALE  EFRHERRE
HEAMAAANEERSRERAREH
3% 5 72,400,000 B 2 1 1 2 F AR - 5 70
BT -

() BHBREZ G GEET

Conditions
Number of Vesting life of
options Contractual options
BIRERE BB R BREZ SR
Options granted to directors: 26,100,000 One third on each 3 years
- on 7 May 2008 of the grant date, =4
BTEEZHERRE first and second
——ZZEN\FRHA+H anniversaries of
grant date
BRERLE - 5
B _EAFH
BR=pz2—
Options granted to employees: 46,300,000 One third on each 3 years
—on 7 May 2008 of the grant date, =
RTES 2 HhhE first and second
——ZZN\FRALH anniversaries of
grant date
EREERER - 5@
KE—{HEAFH
BR=92—
Total share options 72,400,000

BRI AR B
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22 Equity settled share-based transactions 22 DEZEEZRORXS (&)

(continued)
(i)  The number and weighted average exercise prices of options (i) BREZEHE RNEFHITEED
are as follows: T
Weighted
average
exercise Number of
price options
IREFI9TEE BRERE
$
7T
Outstanding at 1 January 2009, RZ=—ZZTHF—HF— A~
31 December 2009 and —EThEF+ZA=+—AK
31 December 2010 —E-TFE+_A=+—HRITE 0.5 72,400,000

R-ZZAF—H—HB "
—EEAFt=A=+-RAK
T ZF+-A=+—H
ATFTE (P T 22(iii)) - -

Exercisable at 1 January 2009,
31 December 2009 and
31 December 2010
(note 22(iii))

86

(iii)

The options outstanding at 31 December 2010 had an
exercise price of $0.5 and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 0.35 years. No share options were granted
or exercised under the scheme during the year.

Fair value of options granted during 2008 and assumptions (iii)

The fair value of services received in return for options
granted are measured by reference to the fair value of
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the services
received is measured based on the Black-Scholes model. The
contractual life of the option is used as an input into this

RZE—ZEFE+_A=1+—HZKRT
(R Z 1T RRER0.57T - INAEFT
FIERE K HIR B 0355 « FRLMEK
kTR A Bkt &) 2 BB RAE -

“EZ)N\FARLBEREZAAERR

Eis
X

B BB AR DA MR BR P HE BR TS 2 & Ao
B D2ERRUBREZARER
B - TEREZ AR ERE R —&F
A EEREAGE - BREZS
HWEMBIELBRAZAEEHR -

model.
2008
—TT)\F
Fair value at measurement date RETEEBZARE $0.1439 7T
Share price at measurement date RetEE B 2 k(E $0.4850 7T
Exercise price nidi-] $0.5000 7©
Expected volatility (expressed as TRERR I8 (LARA 152 —
a weighted average volatility used ATRRETERRETE
in the modelling under the B FT A 2 hnkE
Black-Scholes model) TR IERE) 60%
Option life (expressed as a weighted TRt AR SE BR (LAME 52 —
average life used in the modelling AR ET R E (BAE R
under the Black-Scholes model) FT A 2 i 39 S BARE) 3 years
34
Expected dividends TEEARR B Nil
Risk free interest rate A2 R e ) 2.1%



22 Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

(iii)

(continued)

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of
the options), adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility due to publicly available information. Expected
dividends are based on historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect the fair
value estimate.

Options were granted under a market condition. The share
options can only be exercised when the market price of
the shares of the Company is $1.2 per share or above. This
condition has been taken into account in the grant date fair

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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22 LERGEZRORS (#)

(i) (%)

TEHA R 1R AR AR SR e (AR 1 g A g
ZIMEFHARGHARE)FE - I
ERBHE R ARES 2 ERIAZR
FORERCEH TR - HHRERE
BEZEESFE - TBBARRZE
PREBEXEAAEMG

BREDZEMARL - REEARF
Z RN TERER.27TTRIA EZBER
T AATREBAEE - NEFEEAE
R B ZRAER - 25 RULIRE

value measurement. o
23 Share capital 23 AR
The Company
RAF]
Number of
ordinary
shares Amount
ZERHAE okt
‘000 $'000
Tt T
Ordinary shares of SREE0.I0TZEER !
$0.10 each:
Authorised: JEE ¢
At 31 December 2009 REZZBZENFR
and 2010 —E—FTEL+—-F=+—H 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EZTRHE -
At 31 December 2009 REZZBZENFR
and 2010 —E—FTEL+—-F=+—H 3,732,638 373,264

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets.

EBER A A G R W B R 3 R i
B UYEENARFTGALRER-—FK
BERR - FAEEBREARBNBREES
AR -
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24 Reserves

24 f#E

The Company AN
Share-based
Share  Translation compensation Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
RPEE EifE ROFHER E) 7| At
$'000 §'000 §'000 $'000 $'000
T T S R R
Balance at 1 January 2009 RZZENE-A-A2kt 710,477 (545) 6,182 (28,138) 687,976
Changes in equity for 2009 “ETNFERRY:
Equity settled share-based transaction IWEREEZRARS - 3,629 - 3,629
Total comprehensive income for the year FNEERALR 3 - (7,501) (7,498)
Balance at 31 December RZBBAETZA=1-H
2009 and 1 January 2010 R-Z-Z5-F-H2&H 710,477 (542) 9,811 (35,639) 684,107
Changes in equity for 2010 “E-TEERRY:
Equity settled share-based transaction WEREEZRAZS - 608 - 608
Total comprehensive income for the year FREERALS (49) - (3,979) (4,028)

Balance at 31 December 2010

The Company's reserves available for distribution to its
shareholders comprise share premium and accumulated losses
which in aggregate amounted to approximately $671 million as
at 31 December 2010 (2009: $675 million). Under the Companies
Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium of the
Company is available for paying distributions or dividends to
shareholders subject to the provisions of its memorandum and
articles of association and provided that immediately following
the payment of distribution or dividends, the Company is able to
pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
In accordance with the Company’s articles of association,
distributions shall be payable out of the profits or other reserves,
including the share premium account, of the Company.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optional capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of a net debt-to-capital ratio. For this
purpose the Group defines net debt as total debt (which includes
interest-bearing loans and borrowings), less cash and cash
equivalents. Capital is calculated as shareholders’ funds plus net
debt or minus net cash.

RoB-BE+-A=1-AzEH 710,477

(591) 10,419 (39,618) 680,687

AAR AR FREZ FESERDZE
MEHEE R-_T—ZTFt+_A=1+—
BN MEBT(ZZETNE 6758
JT) ° IRIEMSEE R RA (KIER]) » KA
A) 2 B 7% (& AT A 17 R 3k 1B B A% BT 3%
FREER » HEZD IR RIREREBFE AR
MEBERAMRAANZ BT MEERE
DR RIRERBE » NATMDRER B & %
BBREREEINHES - BREARRAZA
RIBBERMA 0 KRR Z2DIRAREF
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24 Reserves (continued)

25

Capital management (continued)

During 2010, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from
2009, was to maintain the net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at
an appropriate level. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The net debt-to-capital ratio was 0.48 and 0.62 as at 31 December
2009 and 2010 respectively.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

Financial risk management and fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s exposure
to these risks and the financial risk management policies and
practices used by the Group to manage these risks are described
below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Cash and
cash equivalents are normally placed at financial institutions
that have sound credit rating. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored
on an ongoing basis.

(i) Trade and other receivables

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due within 30 days from the date of
billing. Debtors with balances that are more than 1
month past due are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry and country in which customers
operate and therefore significant concentration of
credit risk primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers. At the balance sheet
date, the Group has a certain concentration of credit
risk as 87% (2009: 7%) of the total trade and other
receivables was due from the Group's five largest
customers.
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25 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Trade and other receivables (continued)

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 15.

(i)  Deposits with banks

The Group'’s limits its exposure to credit risk by placing
deposits with financial institutions that meet the
established credit rating or other criteria. Given these
high credit ratings, management does not expect any
counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 63% (2009: 47 %) of
total cash and cash equivalents were deposited with a
financial institution in the PRC.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the balance sheet after deducting any impairment
allowance. The Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group or the
Company to credit risk.

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by the parent
Company’s board when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Company’s policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and
the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the balance sheet date)
and the earliest date the Group and the Company can be
required to pay.

For bank loan subject to repayment on demand clauses which
can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the analysis
shows the cash outflow based on the contractual repayment
schedule and, separately, the impact to the timing of the cash
outflows if the lender was to invoke its unconditional right to
call the loan with immediate effect.
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25 Financial risk management and fair values 25 BfEKREERAAE (£)

(continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) E£REBERE =)

The Group AEE
il 209
o B 52 N
Contractal undiscounted cash outlow Contractue undiscouted csh outfow
afrHBRSRY ARSI
More than Moe than
Within ~ Morethan ~ 2years Balamce ~ Witn  Moethn 2y Balance
Tyear  Tyearbut  butless Nore sheet Ty Tyebt  butls Hore heet
oron lessthan than than anying oo lessthan fran fan anying
Gemand ~ Dyears  Syears  Syeas TotWl  amount  demand  lyews Sy Sy Todl  amount
- i i $§ 0 i it
N i 85 o ER R i B
B OURRE JHEE if # EEE BB OJNWE  JNEE Bt
§000 §000 §000 §000 §000 §000 §00 §000 §000 §000 §00 §000
17 i i 17 i i 7 Tz fr 7 1 S
Bank eans st 64956 G881 198183 SA0A%6 4RSS 116660 4B%0 1835 33BN - iK% dTv
Ot ayables EREHGE 9989 - 099 %999 108161 - - - 1gl6t  108t61
164965 0891 198183 S0A% 19SS 1266%8
Austment todicksecash BESTAZR[52
Towsonbankloars B AEEEES
bedonlenersitty B4ERECEE
Gemand payment 05 RSy 65) (0g) -
The Company NN
m 09
55 EoE
Contractualundiscounted cashoutflow Contactalundscounted csh utfow
ARRERRANY afaREeit
More than More tran
Within ~ Morethan 2 years Balance Wit Moethn  2yeas Balance
Tyear  Tyearbut — butless sheet Ty Dbt butles Sneet
oron lessthan than amying oo lessthan fian a@rying
Gemand — Dyears  Syears Totdl  amowt  cemand  ljess Sy Tl amount
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I L wo HE o FEE Bz
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25 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(1)

25 BEREERAE (£)

(c) Interest rate risk () F=EREBs
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from bank AEEBZMERBREZRERITE
borrowings. The Group’s bank borrowings at 31 December BE-ASER=_ZFT—ZTF+=A
2010 were issued at variable rates and therefore expose the =+ —BZRITBERFEF G
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s and the B B2 A& B E 53R &R F X E
Company’s interest rate profile as monitored by management B o NS 2 AR BN R E IR B B
is set out in (i) below. AW EFIP T XX (1) 18 °
Interest rate profile ) F=EER
The Group The Company
A5H N
010 2009 2010 2009
T§-¥ BRI 238 BRI
Effective Efective Effective Hfective
interest Interest interest Interest
rate Amount rate Amount rate Amount rate Amount
BBz i EEfE 28 BBz £1 ] BRI 28
§000 §000 §000 §1000
i i v i
Fixed rate instruments: TEIE:
Time deposits EERT 191% 21,154 135% 159,001 - - - -
Bankloans HIER 5.40% (587,615) 4.86% (227,144) - - - -
o661 s - T
Variable rate instruments: ~ ¥SI&:
Cash at bank i 0.36%1.17% 55275 0.01%1.17% 182933 0.01% 1,816 0.01% 3693
Bank loans HIER 1.78%-6.02% (539,054) 5.18% (669,950) - - - -
) e o we 363
Total instruments IE8E 1,050,240 555,160 1816 369

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2010, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
decrease/increase the Group's profit after tax and
increase/decrease the Group’s accumulated losses by
approximately $3,772,000 (2009: $3,896,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the balance sheet date and had been applied to
the exposure to interest rate risk for all non-derivative
financial instruments in existence at that date. The
100 basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until the next
annual balance sheet date. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2009.
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25 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(d) Currency risk

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

Foreign currency transactions

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
billings of storage, transshipment and port income that
are denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate. The
currency giving rise to this risk are primarily United
States dollars (“USD").

As the Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") is pegged to the
USD, the Group considers the risk of movements in
exchange rates between the HKD and the USD to be
insignificant.

Recognised assets and liabilities

In respect of other trade receivables and payables held
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate, the Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by
buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where
necessary to address short-term imbalances.

All the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the
functional currency of the entity taking out the loan.
Given this, management does not expect that there
will be any significant currency risk associated with the
Group's borrowings.

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at
the balance sheet date to currency risk arising from
forecast transactions or recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.
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Exposure to foreign currencies

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SMEEBE (B TR
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
United United
States States
dollars dollars
E3 =T
$'000 $'000
Frx Tt
Trade and other receivables & 5 & E b el 208 591 473
Cash and cash equivalents R& MESFEIEH 7,097 7,674
Overall exposure BEEEmbe 7,688 8,147
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25 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)
(iv) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group's profit after tax (and accumulated losses)
that would arise if foreign exchange rates to which the
Group has significant exposure at the balance sheet
date had changed at that date, assuming all other risk
variables remained constant.

MEEBEERQAE )

(d) E¥REKE#)
(iv) BEEZHT

TRETREER - ERAEE
i BT 22 [ e ) 3% i 55 1S 2
BERT  HAKEEEEKRR
B ERNZABRES &
HAKE BB REN (&R
B8 iER 2 Bl P2 o

The Group PN
2010 2009
“2-%f% ZEENE

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) Increase/  (Decrease)/ (decrease) Increase/  (Decrease)/
in foreign  (decrease) increase in in foreign (decrease) increase in
exchange in profit accumulated exchange in profit  accumulated
rate after tax losses rate after tax losses
EXAE/ REAET ZitER  EXAE/  REGER ZiEE
BE 8Bm/BY) (CHD)/Em RE EM/CRD) CED)/#Em
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i i T T
United States dollars %78 3% 231 (231) 3% 244 (244)
(3)% (231) 231 (3)% (244) 244

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects
on each of the Group entities’ profit after tax and
equity measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rate ruling at the balance sheet date for presentation
purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the balance
sheet date, including inter-company payables and
receivables within the Group which are denominated
in a currency other than the functional currencies
of the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations into
the Group's presentation currency. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2009.
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25 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(e) Fair values

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair
value

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2010 and
2009.

The fair value of bank loans are estimated as the present value
of future cash flows, discounted at current market interest
rates for similar financial instruments.

The fair value of trade and other receivables, cash and
cash equivalents, other payables and accruals and deferred
revenue are not materially different from their carrying
amounts.

26 Operating lease arrangements

(a) The Group as lessee

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of land and buildings, which fall
due as follows:
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(a) AEEER/EBAA

WEER  ARERBETAHE L
WRBFREHERAN ZREKE
HEAEZZHAMT

The Group
AEH

2010 2009

—ZT-ZF —ETNF

$'000 $'000

Fr Tt

Within one year —FR 5,063 4,459
In the second to REZZERF

fifth year inclusive (EEMFBREEA) 750 3,263

5,813 7,722

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for its office premises and directors’ quarters. Leases
are negotiated for an average term of two years with fixed
rentals. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
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26 Operating lease arrangements (continued)

(b) The Group as lessor

idated Financial Statements

26

The Group leases out certain dock and storage facilities under

operating leases.

Rental and storage income earned during the year was
approximately $153 million (2009: $150 million). The leases
are negotiated for a lease term of 1 to 20 years. None of the

leases includes contingent rentals.

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are receivables as follows:

KBS THE)
(b) Z~EEESDEHBEA

AEERBLEHENEE THER
BPTFaRE

FAMERZEAS KEFRAL A
1.53BL(ZTTNF : 1.508m) °
HEDEBR—E - +F 2 FHETE
i ZEHEMEENAEL -

AEBRBTAHEZ CEHERK
ZARRREESEERNT

The Group
rEH

2010 2009

—E-BF —ETNEF

$'000 $'000

Fr Tt

Within one year —FRA 136,080 117,770
In the second to RE_ZFERF

fifth year inclusive (HEMEBEERN) 436,452 378,379

More than five years BEAF 1,019,630 1,054,096

1,592,162 1,550,245

At the balance sheet date, certain of the above future non-
cancellable operating leases receivables from year 2011 to
year 2024 of $1,529,444,000 (2009: $1,478,026,000) were
pledged against banking facilities granted by a bank to a

subsidiary of the Group (note 19).

27 Capital commitments

27

At 31 December 2010, the Group had capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the financial statements in
respect of terminal development and acquisition of port and
storage facilities amounted to $34 million (2009: $184 million).

At 31 December 2010, the Group had capital expenditure not
contracted for but approved by the board and not provided
in the financial statements in respect of terminal development
and acquisition of port and storage facilities amounted to
approximately $161 million (2009: $301 million).
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Material related party transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group entered into
the following significant transactions with related parties:

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel, including amounts
paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 7 and certain
of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

28
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A 2EARS
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IZEEBAEMEBEXNARRIES
(RMEE7HE) RETRHES (RS
WE) <28 #IWT :

2010 2009
BT —ETNF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Short-term employee benefits REESER 9,715 8,262
Post-employment benefits BER2 1R A 114 114
Equity settled share-based payment  PAEz#EE 2 RMH L H 213 1,278
10,042 9,654
Contingent liabilities 29 HAEE
Financial guarantees issued 2R NS RER

As at the balance sheet date, the Company has issued guarantees
to banks in respect of banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries.
The directors do not consider it probable that a claim will be
made against the Company under any of the guarantees. The
maximum liability of the Company at the balance sheet date
under the guarantee is the amount of the facilities drawn down
by the subsidiaries that are covered by the guarantees, being
$10,200,000 (2009: $Nil).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in respect of
the guarantees as its fair value cannot be reliably measured using
observable market data and its transaction price was $Nil (2009:

$Nil).

Immediate and ultimate controlling party

At 31 December 2010, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Vand
Petro-Chemicals (BVI) Company Limited, which is incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce financial
statements available for public use.
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31 Accounting judgements and estimates

Notes 22 and 25 contain information about the assumptions and
their risk factors relating to fair value of share options granted
and financial instruments. Other critical accounting judgements
in applying the Group’s accounting policies and key sources of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:

0]

(ii)

Impairments

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of assets at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. When indication of impairment is
identified, management prepares discounted future cash flow
to assess the differences between the carrying amount and
value in use and provides for impairment loss. Any change
in the assumptions adopted in the cash flow forecasts would
increase or decrease in the provision of impairment loss and
affect the Group’s net asset value.

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts is assessed and
provided based on the management’s regular review of
ageing analysis and evaluation of collectibility. A considerable
level of judgement is exercised by the directors when
assessing the credit worthiness and past collection history of
each individual customer.

An increase or decrease in the above impairment loss would
affect the net profit in future years.

Depreciation

Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of the assets. The Group reviews
the estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order
to determine the amount of depreciation expense to be
recorded during any reporting period. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.

(iii) Lease classification

Leases are classified as operating leases if the duration
of the arrangement are for less than a major part of the
facilities’ useful lives and the present value of the minimum
payments under the arrangement does not amount to at
least substantially all of the fair value of the facilities. The
classification of leases may change if there are significant
changes from previous estimates of the facilities useful lives
and the present value of the minimum payments. The Group
uses all readily available information in estimating the useful
lives and present value of minimum payments.

(iv) Provision for taxation

Judgment is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are transactions and calculations for
which ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The final outcomes are subject to
uncertainties and resulting liabilities may exceed provisions.
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32 Possible impact of amendments, new

standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2010

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments and Interpretations and
one new standard which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2010 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (G

AN j- %& + % ﬁ =3
:%ZF =] E\ ) #—E( |Z Vat
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(KBTI - BRIFHEHIEH)

R EEMERBE_ZTE—ZF
T+ A=+—BLEFEEKRE
WMZIEE] ~ FRTERIRZET
BEER 2 E

BEAMBHRTIEER  BESFEA
SEHEMZEBE]  RBE —BHIE
8 BREE_T-—ZTF+-_A=+—H
LIEFERARER - TRARERAN A 75 5
R o RIRER] - RERMIEABEAT
AEEEALEREZAR -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RT3 Bz %5R%A
ZETHHRBEXN

Revised HKAS 24, Related party disclosures

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
[RT A |

Improvements to HKFRS 2010

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes
[Fr5%: ]

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of
them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Company’s
results of operations and financial position.

(BREFERDE 245
(RAERT ) R 73 42 B
(BB RELERDE 95

(CE-ZFHBFEPBREE 2HE)

(CEREFHERDE 12 RERTA

1 January 2011

—2——%—F—H
1 January 2013
—Zf—=%—H—H
1 July 2010
e =

or 1 January 2011
F—_T——F—H—H
1 January 2012
—Z-——%—H—H

AREBIEAEF AR FERT - FER R
BREXEAYERAMEKN 2FE - 25
R RAZEER  FEARRETKN
A REH AR B 2 R KA RN EK
EARE -
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I Fivc Year Financial Summary G
hFHBEE

Year ended 31 December
EiIF+=A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LETTST)
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
ZZTRE  TTAE T\ _TTHNF  E2-EF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T Fr
RESULTS #i5
Turnover BEE 166,936 160,286 165,166 158,944 159,615
Profit before taxation B4 A& A 161,695 78,302 72.490 67,038 63,545
Income tax FTiS#t (13,003) (6,986) (8,972) (19,085) (20,738)
Profit attributable to equity ARERER
shareholders of the Company  E{&&FI 134,218 64,014 56,395 41,746 37,020
Profit attributable to IR
non-controlling interests FEfR & 14,474 7,302 7,123 6,207 5,787
Profit for the year F 5 7 148,692 71,316 63,518 47,953 42,807
At 31 December
R+=B=+—H
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
ZTTRF  ZTTEF  ZTT)\F ZTTHhF —E-EF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T Fr
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE
Total assets BEBE 661,207 915,967 1,097,930 1,647,571 1,899,914
Total liabilities BELE 664,996 471,291 559,274 1,056,466 1,243,406
Non-controlling interests R 23,118 31,140 40,291 46,567 54,117
Total equity attributable to equity A2 EIRER &ML
shareholders of the Company s (26,907) 413,536 498,365 544,538 602,391

Note: Under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, the  Afit - RIBEBBZEFEMZETRE - R=_=ZM

acquisition of the entire interest in Union Petro-Chemicals (BVI) F+-_AKBERBMAELBCIERAH
Company Limited (“UPC") in December 2004 has been accounted ([BBEA]) 2R %I A—TEKR
for as a reverse acquisition. Accordingly, the above financial UeEE o Eitt - bt 2 IR E RIS A AL
information represents those of the UPC Group. SEZHBEER o
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